






SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

BUSINESS MANAGER 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

 Under the direction of the County and/or District Superintendents, serves as 

Business Manager and chief business official of Sierra County Office of 

Education (SCOE) and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (S-

PJUSD). The Business Manager plans, organizes, and manages the SCOE 

and S-PJUSD internal fiscal operations including the analysis, development 

and implementation of the budgets for both entities.  In this capacity, the 

Business Manager performs complex and technical duties related to 

business services, works to safeguard public funds, ensures the most 

effective use of revenue to support and improve the educational programs, 

responsible for collection and reporting of financial data, responsibly plans 

and assists in the development of the budgets for both entities, and 

establishes and maintains effective internal accounting procedures. The 

person in this management position works in a typical office setting and 

serves as the office manager. 

PRINCIPLE RESPONSIBILITIES: 

In conformance with the philosophy, goals, and objectives of the SCOE and S-PJUSD, 

business management services are provided to promote the fiscally sound operations 

of the office.  To accomplish these goals and objectives, the Business Manager will, in 

consultation with the Superintendents: 

 Assist in the planning, development and administering of the county/district 

Oversee all aspects of developing, monitoring, and reporting the SCOE/            

S-PJUSD budgets, and make recommendations to the Superintendent and 

Board 

 Working cooperatively with other administrative staff in the development and 

control of their respective budgets 

 Analyze long range planning as it relates to income, expenditures, program 

costs, facilities, and general budgeting considerations 

 Responsible for proper accounting of all funds and accounts 

 Prepare and compile financial statements and budget information and present to 

Superintendent and Board 

 Provide SCOE/S-PJUSD leadership team the expenditure details for the Local 

Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) goals and actions 

 Train, coordinate with and assist the assistant business manager business office 

personnel with in the preparation and submission of all local, county, state, and 

federal reports and correspondence 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 Develop internal audit procedures and prepare audit records in cooperation with 

the independent auditors of the SCOE and S-PJUSD; ensure compliance with 

federal and state regulations on proper accounting methods, practices and 

applicable fiscal services management 

 Supervise the use of requisitions and purchase orders to ensure accountability 

of expenditures 

 Review and approve purchase orders for issuance 

 Audit process and monitor account receivables; audit Issue payments for all 

invoices 

 Balance  Audit payroll and issue payroll warrants 

 Implement and monitor proper warehousing inventory control procedures  

 Maintain files for legal documents, audits, reports, and permanent property 

records and fixed assets inventory 

 Maintain oversight of the inventory maintenance of all fixed assets 

 Facilitate the construction bid process; ensure facility projects are managed 

from financing to completion; maintain records, policies, and contracts of 

property and building facilities 

 Supervise deferred maintenance accounting 

 Manage statistical files and charts of business services 

 Train and supervise business office staff  

 Audit Reconcile cash in County Treasurer funds 

 Review average daily attendance reports 

 Research and/or assist with grant writing applications 

 Oversee Wellness Plan compliance 

 Review and edit monthly board of education and governing board agenda and 

minutes 

 Coordinate with Technology Director Serve as system manager for office data 

process, the acquisition of computers, software, workflow scheduling, file 

system maintenance, and implementation of systems 

 Serve as office manager to plan, organize, assign, review, direct, and evaluate 

the work of the support staff  

 Coordinate legal claims and manage litigation files 

 Respond to policy management questions as directed by the District and/or 

County Superintendent 

 Coordinate Grand Jury requests 

 Process 1099’s annually 

 Process W-2’s annually 

 Close year-end books 

 Attend workshops and conferences related to business operations as approved 

by the Superintendent 

 Maintain oversight of the recruitment, selection and hiring process for all 

employees 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 Serve as SCOE and S-PJUSD representative/delegate on varies executive 

boards and/or committees as assigned by Superintendent 

 Provide informational documents to support the Superintendent and SCOE/S-

PJUSD team for employee negotiations  

 Attends governing board, school, and community meetings as needed or 

required 

 Other duties as assigned delegated by the Superintendent 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

A bachelor’s degree in accounting, public or business administration, economics or 

related field. At least five years increasingly responsible experience in professional 

budgeting, accounting, auditing, or school business administration and/or 

graduation from an accredited college or university with a major in business, 

accounting, public administration, or a related field. The education requirement can 

be fulfilled with a combination of experience and college course work in related 

subject areas that would lead to the required knowledge, skills and abilities 

required by the position. Desire Chief Business Official Certification and Certified 

Public Accountant (CPA) designation. 

 

 Possess a thorough in-depth knowledge of financial planning, school 

accounting and governmental budgeting 

 Ability to interpret a variety of laws, policies, regulations, procedures, 

Education Code, Government Code, bargaining agreements, and state and 

federal regulations codes, and ordinances   

 Possess a thorough knowledge of the office business financial operating 

system 

 Possess a thorough knowledge of government purchasing procedures, 

bidding process, construction/modernization/maintenance project process 

and California school construction laws  

 Ability to work independently and exercise a high degree of initiative and 

independent judgment  

 Ability to compose, prepare, and edit all types of communications  

 Ability to read and write in the English language 

 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with all 

personnel other employees, and public contacts during the course of 

business 

 Ability and skill to supervise subordinate staff  

 Ability to plan, organize, and maintain the office as an efficient operation 

and as a support agency to improve the educational programs of the district 

and county SCOE AND S-PJUSD 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 Operate all office equipment including facsimile, personal computer,  

 typewriter, 10-key adding machine, photocopier, shredder and mail machine 

and binding machine 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

• This type of work involves sitting most of the time but may include 
physical abilities such as standing and walking; sitting/squatting, 
lifting/carrying, reaching/handling, bending/twisting, talking/hearing, 
near and far visual acuity/depth perception, manual dexterity to 
operate office equipment and computer 

• Moderate lifting; may assist with lifting 20-30 pounds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Reading: April 8, 2003; Adopt June 10, 2003 

Revision: December 13, 2016 

 

 

z:job description/SCOE Business Manager 



 

Trauma Informed PS-MAPP  

Regional Leader Training 

Caring for Our Own 

Facilitator Training 

 

Trauma Informed PS-MAPP (TIPS-MAPP)  is a national certification training.  It is eight days in 
length and attendees must attend all eight days.  At the end, participants will be able to use all the 
tools of the TIPS-MAPP program (ten-week group program) to help families make an informed 
decision about fostering and adopting.  There is a homestudy and assessment component as part 

of the training.  
 
TIPS-Deciding Together (Online Course),  is for already Certified TIPS-MAPP Leaders who work 
with families who cannot attend a regular TIPS-MAPP Group.  It is a 1:1 format to help families 
make an informed decision about fostering or adopting.  It has the same assessment components 
as the TIPS-MAPP. 
 
Caring For Our Own training is to certify Facilitators to lead a nine-meeting support group for 

kinship caregivers.  

SAVE THE DATES!!   
 

TIPS-MAPP Leader Certification:  April 11, 2017 through April 14, 2017  
Take One Week Break - April 17th through 21st 

Certification Resumes:    April 25, 2017 through April 28, 2017 
 

TIPS-Deciding Together Leader Certification:  May 1-20 — Online  
May 22 Face to Face Meeting (morning) 

 
Caring for Our Own:  May 22 (afternoon) through May 26 

 
8:30am to 5:00pm each day unless specified 

 
Sierra County Office of Education 

109 Beckwith Rd  Room 4             Loyalton California 96118 
 

Affordable Training Costs per person to be announced (includes Facilitator’s Kit) 
For questions, contact Hannah at htomatis@spjusd.org 

Trauma Informed PS-Deciding Together 

Online Leader Training 

SAVE THE DATES!!! 

Children’s Alliance Resource Network 

Workshop  

In Sierra County, California 

See Below for Dates 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 239,007.00 239,007.00 155,738.59 79,820.34 3,448.07 Teachers Salaries

1120 2,050.00 2,050.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 63,839.00 63,839.00 42,406.77 18,205.33 3,226.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 170,833.00 170,833.00 100,303.77 73,799.10 3,269.87-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 473,679.00 473,679.00 298,449.13 173,874.77 1,355.10 

2100 91,496.00 91,496.00 57,948.43 30,646.26 2,901.31 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2105 51.00 51.00-Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2120 172.71 172.71-Classified Substitutes

2200 22,358.00 22,358.00 6,995.61 4,475.02 10,887.37 Classified Support Salaries

2300 101,356.00 101,356.00 58,703.40 42,081.00 571.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 131,117.00 131,117.00 77,896.25 53,220.31 .44 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 13,638.00 13,638.00 1,145.00 12,493.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 359,965.00 359,965.00 201,543.69 131,791.30 26,630.01 

3101 59,287.00 59,287.00 37,148.58 21,480.80 657.62 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 1,650.00 1,650.00 395.36 169.44 1,085.20 STRS Classified Positions

3201 9.72 9.72-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 59,611.00 59,611.00 36,176.28 23,957.26 522.54-PERS Classified Positions

3301 17.98 17.98-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 21,633.00 21,633.00 11,895.45 7,914.09 1,823.46 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 6,234.00 6,234.00 3,936.94 2,307.22 10.16-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,157.00 5,157.00 2,827.60 1,873.68 455.72 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 94,367.00 94,367.00 62,453.93 31,725.47 187.60 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 59,571.00 59,571.00 44,320.10 27,144.92 11,894.02-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 329.00 329.00 149.24 87.08 92.68 SUI Certificated

3502 249.00 249.00 100.69 65.22 83.09 SUI Classified

3601 881.00 881.00 10,076.15 5,904.84 15,099.99-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 1,590.00 1,590.00 7,236.31 4,794.96 10,441.27-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 6,920.00 6,920.00 13,840.50 6,920.50-Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 317,479.00 317,479.00 216,716.63 141,293.18 40,530.81-

4100 410.00 410.00 410.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 444.00 444.00 444.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 23,277.00 23,277.00 3,942.50 11,178.99 8,155.51 Materials and Supplies

4320 2,972.00 2,972.00 2,972.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 279.29 720.71 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,007.46 211.66 3,280.88 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  6 2016 12:50PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4400 9,561.00 9,561.00 9,323.55 2,909.22 2,671.77-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 43,164.00 43,164.00 15,273.51 14,579.16 13,311.33 

5100 42,000.00 42,000.00 38,212.06 5,672.14 1,884.20-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,280.00 23,280.00 39,054.14 6,270.10 22,044.24-Travel and Conference

5300 18,370.00 18,370.00 428.75 10,151.75 7,789.50 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 8,191.00 1,109.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 2,269.26 1,822.03 5,108.71 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 721.56 315.69 1,562.75 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 25,500.00 25,500.00 1,000.00 24,500.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 613.00 613.00 100.00 513.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,037.96 462.04 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 444,507.00 444,507.00 215,089.86 152,289.38 77,127.76 Contracted Services

5899 3,259.41 246.11 3,505.52-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 695.60 904.40 Communications

Total for Object 5000 579,970.00 579,970.00 301,173.00 186,115.84 92,681.16 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 30,300.00 30,300.00 30,300.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 60,332.00 60,332.00 .00 .00 60,332.00 

7141 27,582.00 27,582.00 27,582.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 27,582.00 27,582.00 .00 .00 27,582.00 

181,360.79 1,862,171.00 1,862,171.00 1,033,155.96 647,654.25 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 13,360.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

93,360.00 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

274,720.79 1,955,531.00 1,955,531.00 1,033,155.96 647,654.25 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  6 2016 12:50PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=88447&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

November 8, 2016 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

5 pm for Closed Session 

6 pm for Regular Session 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Vice President MOORE called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT: Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 

   Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member  

   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member 

    

 ABSENT:     Ms.  Patty Hall, President     

 

 VACANT:     None 

 

C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 DRISCOLL/DRYDEN 

 4/0 

 1 Absent  

 

     HALL arrived at 5:02 pm. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION at 5:03 pm.  There was no comment.  

 At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session item. 

 

 The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Rose Asquith, Business Manager 

moved into Closed Session to discuss the following item: 

 

1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators 

      Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

      Employee Organizations:   

      Represented Employees:      Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

      Unrepresented Employees:   Classified Employees 

        Confidential Employees 

        Administrative Employees 

 

E. CLOSED SESSION – 5:03 pm. 

MOORE/DRISCOLL 

5/0 

 

F. RETURNED TO OPEN SESSION at 5:59 pm and ADJOURNED FOR BREAK 

 

 6:00 pm - RECONVENED 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 8, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

G. FLAG SALUTE 

 

H. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION - Discussed negotiations and gave the superintendent 

direction in regards to the Board’s offer to the SPTA. 

 
I. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

  

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) Quarterly 

Meeting was held in Bakersfield. 

b. Confidential Employees 2016-17 Initial Proposal for Salary and Health & Welfare benefits 

c. Job Description #214, Instructional Aide, Special Education, revision 

d. SmartWatt – Sierra COE is anticipating a December report for energy saving proposals on the 

Downieville boiler. 

e. Facility Inspection Tool – to be completed in cooperation with site maintenance regarding 

enhancements and maintenance to facilities. 

f. Local Control Accountability Plan Template Workshop will be attended by Dr. Grant and 

Mrs. Mongolo (LCAP author). 

g. The Sierra County Office of Education will be closed for 
 Thanksgiving Holiday, November 24 and 25, 2016 

 Winter Break from December 23, 2106 through January 2, 2017 

 

2. Business Report 

a.  Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/16 to 10/31/16 

 

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

 Megan Meschery, Curriculum Coordinator, reviewed  the curriculum added this year.  Focus 

areas are reflected in the document attached and presented to the board.  

  

4. SPTA Report (5 minutes) - There was none. 

 

5. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) - There was none. 

 

6. Public Comment – This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board on any item of 

interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or not it is listed on the agenda.  Five minutes 

may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter.  (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 

9322; Government Code 54954.3) 
a. Current location 

Megan Meschery, Sierra Schools Foundation, grant cycle opened on Monday and applications will be reviewed right before 

holiday break.  They have close to $30,000 for this grant cycle.  

b.  Videoconference location – there was no comment. 

 
J. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held October 11, 2016 

2. Approval of Board Report – Checks Dated 07/01/2016 through 10/31/2016 

DRISCOLL/DRYDEN 

5/0 

  

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131393/9
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145075/9


Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 8, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. New Business 

 

  BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  

MOORE motioned to approve Items 1617-51 through and including Item 1615-54. Seconded by 

DRISCOLL. 

 

1617-51 Approval of Board Policy 0410, Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities, 

revision 

 

1617-52 Approval of Board Policy 4151, 4251, 4351, Employee Compensation, revision 

 

1617-53 Approval of Administrative Regulation 4157.1, 4257.1, 4357.1, Work Related Injuries, 

revision 

 

1617-54 Approval of Administrative Regulation 6158, Independent Study, revision (retract section) 

 

K. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

 1.    Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on December 13, 2016, at Downieville School, 130 

 School Street, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5:00 pm 

 and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

2.    Suggested Agenda Items   

a. 2016-17 First Interim 

b. SmartWatt Plan 
 

L. ADJOURN 

DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 

5/0 

 

Adjourned at 6:15 pm. 

 

 

 

 __________________________   _______________________________  

 Allen Wright, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

        Secretary of the Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2016 through 11/30/2016

Check 
Amount

Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014498 11/14/2016 ROSE ASQUITH 01-5200 PER DIEM 51.77 

01-5899 PER DIEM 155.31 207.08 

00014499 11/14/2016 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 CASP CONFERENCE 1,537.80 

MILEAGE 91.26 1,629.06 

00014500 11/14/2016 KATIE CAMPBELL 01-4300 CRAFT SUPPLIES 20.79 

00014501 11/14/2016 CCSESA 01-5200 REGISTRATION 85.00 

00014502 11/14/2016 TOMMY DEL CARLO 01-5810 TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSE 135.43 

00014503 11/14/2016 AMY FILIPPINI 01-5200 PARKING 18.00 

00014504 11/14/2016 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5300 NURSE SERVICES 99.00 

01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 3,600.00 3,699.00 

00014505 11/14/2016 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 960.00 

00014506 11/14/2016 LES SCHAWB 01-4350 VEHICLE SERVICE 56.82 

01-5600 VEHICLE SERVICE 28.42 

01-5899 VEHICLE SERVICE 28.42 113.66 

00014507 11/14/2016 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 178.88 

00014508 11/14/2016 MARY LOWE, MFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,440.00 

00014509 11/14/2016 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

1,851.82 

01-5810 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

6,199.58 8,051.40 

00014510 11/14/2016 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-5200 PER DIEM 48.00 

00014511 11/14/2016 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 27.00 

00014512 11/14/2016 NCS PEARSON, INC. 01-4300 ASSESSMENT SYSTEM 364.34 

00014513 11/14/2016 PLACER COUNTY SELPA 01-5200 REIGSTRATION 75.00 

00014514 11/14/2016 QUILL CORPORATION 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 631.45 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.53 647.98 

00014515 11/14/2016 SHERATON SAN DIEGO HOTEL & 

MARINA

01-5200 WORKABILITY HOTEL 352.75 

00014516 11/14/2016 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 

EDUCATION

01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 198.44 

00014517 11/14/2016 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 MISC. SHOP SUPPLIES 542.11 

00014518 11/14/2016 SINGLETON AUMAN PC 01-5810 AUDIT FEES 3,000.00 

00014519 11/14/2016 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-5810 FEES RELATED TO ACA 759.91 

01-9535 NOV 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,873.00 

76-9576 NOV 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 15,898.00 18,530.91 

00014520 11/14/2016 U.S. BANK 01-4300 PEN MAKING KITS 415.70 

TUTORING SUPPLIES 51.60 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  6 2016 12:52PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2016 through 11/30/2016

Check 
Amount

Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014520 11/14/2016 U.S. BANK 01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 21.92 

WORKABILITY CONFERENCE 635.96 

01-5899 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 15.58 

01-5900 STAMPED ENVELOPES 290.25 1,431.01 

00014521 11/14/2016 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 45.98 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 127.54 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 46.80 220.32 

00014522 11/14/2016 BARBARA WEAVER 01-5200 PER DIEM 47.00 

00014523 11/14/2016 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 6.48 

Total Number of Checks 26 42,029.64 

Fund Recap

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 26 26,131.64 01

Payroll Clearing 1 15,898.00 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 26 42,029.64 

.00 

42,029.64 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  6 2016 12:52PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education











Sierra County Office of Education 
2016-2017 First Interim  

Actuals as of October 31, 2016 

Presented December 13, 2016 

 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the budget adoption. 

Local Control Funding Formula 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

LCFF     ($ 4,308) 

Property Tax     $ 2,814 

Education Protection Plan (EPA)  ($ 2,170) 

Net Change     ($ 3,664) 

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue is projected to increase by $132 since the budget adoption for the following reasons:  

 

             Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 

 Sp Ed Discretionary Grant  $ 132 

 

Other State Revenue 

Restricted Other State Revenue increased by $56,400 since the budget adoption for the following reason: 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Non-prop Lottery   $  1,400 

 California Clean Energy Jobs Act $30,000 

 STRS on behalf State Share  $25,000 

 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenue is projected to decrease by $1,336 since the budget adoption for the following reasons:  

             Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 

 Interest      ($ 1,400) 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$806,281; 40%

Federal ; 
$153,230; 7%

Other State; 
$738,307; 37%

Other Local; 
$297,299; 15%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; 
$13,360; 1%

Total Resources $2,008,477



    

SCOE 2016-2017 Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 4 

 

Description 2013-2014 

Actuals 

2014-2015 

Actuals 

2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Budget 

2016-2017 

First 

Interim 

LCFF Resources $  676,265 $939,123 $815,910 $809,945 $806,281 

Federal  565,128 509,486 503,545 153,098 153,230 

Other State 502,506 502,696 701,812 681,907 738,307 

Other Local 229,394 179,217 191,865 298,699 297,299 

Transfer-in SRS 56,916 53,084 54,498 13,360 13,360 

Total $2,030,209 $2,183,606 $2,267,630 $1,957,008 $2,008,477 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $124,562 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the Board 

Approved Operating Budget. 

 
 

 

 
 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2013-2014 

Actuals 

2014-2015 

Actuals 

2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Budget 

2016-2017 

First 

Interim 

Certificated $  336,889 $  332,449 $  377,398 $  473,679 $  487,816 

Classified 342,356 313,380 343,329 359,965 355,652 

Benefits 294,194 302,186               330,649 317,479 369,778 

Books & Supplies 18,078 59,473 29,150 43,164 52,540 

Services & Operating 328,218 399,782 402,702 579,970 598,269 

Capital Outlay 39,431 13,089 6,264 60,332 90,332 

Other Outgo 570,533 519,317 389,641 27,582 32,346 

Total $1,929,709 $1,939,676 $1,879,133 $1,862,171 $1,986,733 

Certificated; 
$487,816; 24%

Classified; 
$355,652; 18%Benefits; $369,778; 

19%

Books & Supplies; 
$52,540; 3%

Services & 
Operating; 

$598,269; 30%

Capital Outlay; 
$90,332; 4%

Outgo to District; 
$32,346; 2%

Total Expenses  $1,986,733



    

SCOE 2016-2017 Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2012-13 $1,974,523 actuals 

2013-14 $2,061,912 actuals 

2014-15 $2,305,842 actuals 

2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals 

2016-17 $2,716,083 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  4.40 

Superintendent    .15 

SELPA Director   .60            13.75 FTE 

Classified  5.70 

Confidential  2.90 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

Comments 

 

1. No COLA on State funding sources. 

2. No salary increase for employees projected in the current or subsequent 2 years. 

3. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

17,536.50);   all other employees H/W is capped at $13,840. H/W cost is $163,000. 

4. PERS rate increase from 11.847% to 13.888%, for a projected annual cost of $48,933. 

5. STRS rate increase from 10.73% to 12.58%.for a projected annual cost of $87,222. 

6. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services. 

7. Secure Rural Schools and Community Act has not been reauthorized.  Forest Reserve Revenue 

budget is $13,860. 

8. Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) California Fiscal Outlook 

a. LOA provided two scenarios for 2018-19 through 2020-21 and estimate of the near-term budget 

conditions through 2017-18.   One scenario is an economic growth which assumes the economy 

continues to grow, and a mild recession which assumes the state experience a mild economic 

downturn beginning in the middle of 2018.  The growth scenario is estimated to remain in 

surplus over the outlook period, whereas in the downturn scenario the state would have enough 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actuals 48,594   

2013-14 actuals 87,389 

2014-15 actuals 243,930 

2015-16 actuals 388,497 

2016-17 projected 21,744 



    

SCOE 2016-2017 Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 4 

reserves to cover almost all of its operating deficits through 2020-21.  This means the state could 

weather a mild recession without cutting spending or raising taxes through 2020-21, assuming 

the state nor federal policy make any changes in any of these years.       

b. Revenues lower by 1.7 billion and Expenditures lower by $1.2 billion in 2015-16 and 2016-17. 

c. Reserves grow to $11.5 billion. 

d. LAO predicts that the state will be required to make an initial deposit of $2 billion into both the 

Budget Stabilization Account (BSA) and Special Fund for Economic Uncertainties (SFEU) for the 

2017-18 fiscal year. 

e. Full implementation of the LCFF could be possible in 2017-18, thereby increasing per-student 

LCFF funding by 4.5 percent over 2016-17.   

9. Special Education funding allocation is being seriously analyzed by public agencies and State of 

California.  Twelve percent of students in the state have special needs.   One report is recommending  

a. Funding districts directly include special education funding as part of the Local Control Funding 

Formula allocation 

b. Preserve AB602’s census count method of distributing special education dollars as well as 

equalize funding across districts by adding an additional $670 million annually 

c. Develop new ways to protect small districts from extraordinary special education cost by 

encouraging pooling arrangements or insurance programs 

d. Better support for local infant and preschool special education programs 























































































































































Mailing Address: PO Box 955

LEA CDS Code: 46104620000000

Local Education Agency Name: Sierra County Office of Education

Zip Code: 96118

City: Loyalton

Applicant Information

Energy Expenditure Plan Report

Proposition 39 Program

CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

November 28, 2016

1 of 2A P P R O V E DA P P L I C A T I O N

Amount Spent for Screening and Audits:

Amount Spent for Program Assistance:

Amount Spent for Energy Manager:

Amount Spent for Training:

Energy Planning Reservation Information

Energy Manager and Training

Version 5

Grant Amount Requested: $74,899.00

Grant Balance Available: $75,080.00

Summary of Schools/Sites

Job Creation Benefits Estimation

Self-Certifications

Amount Requesting for Energy Manager:

Amount Requesting for Training:

$78,899.00 $74,899.00

Total Project Cost

Type of Project Budget Estimated Direct Job-Years Created

0.29

0.10

Total: 0.39

Authorized Representative: Merrill M. Grant Date: 9/16/2016

Apprenticeship Information

Budget

Estimated Other Trainee Jobs Created

Total:

Estimated Apprenticeship Job-Years Created

Other Trainee Position Title

Totals:

Budget for Training Totals:

Budget for Energy Manager:

Budget for Proposition 39 Program Assistance:

Budget for Screening and Energy Audits:

Distributed Energy

Renewable Generation $23,530.00

Energy Efficiency $51,369.00

Did you request Energy Planning Funds?  (If no, move on to next section) No

Are you hiring an Energy Manager with Funds Requested in this Expenditure Plan? No

Are you using Proposition 39 funds for energy related training costs? No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

The LEA followed the Proposition 39 Guidelines regarding Eleigible Energy Project Prioritization Considerations.

The LEA followed the guidelines regarding Sequencing of Facility Improvements

The LEA commits to use the funds for the eligible energy project(s) approved in its energy expenditure plan.

The LEA commits that the information included in the application is true and correct based to the best of the LEA's knowledge.

The LEA commits that all California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements are completed.

The LEA will obtain DSA project approval as applicable pursuant to California Code Regulations, Title 14.

The LEA acknowledges that the expenditures are subject to financial audit requirements

The LEA commits to complying with all reporting requirements.Yes

Expenditure Plans this Fiscal Year:

Submittal Option:

2016-17

Multiple-Year (bundled) Award Expenditure Plan

1Tier:

Please list any state-certified apprenticeship programs being used:

Will this project be subject to a community benefits agreement, community
workforce agreement, or other mechanism that defines project co-benefits?

Propostion 39 Share

Totals:

Estimated Totals: Summation is for  1  School

Submission

1661ID

LEA Authorized Representative

Name: Merrill M. Grant

Title: Superintendent of Schools

Phone: 5309931660

Email: mgrant@spjusd.org

Project Manager

Name: Matt Delp

Title: Project Development Manager

Phone: 5184060734

Email: mdelp@smartwattinc.com



Energy Use(Kbtu)/SF/Year: 130.21Energy Costs/SF/Year: $1.83
Proposition 39 Share to be used for 

Measure Implementation ($): $74,899.00

Local Education Agency: Sierra County Office of Education

LEA CDS Code: 46104620000000

School/Site Name: Sierra County Office of Education

School/Site CDS Code: 46104620000000

109 Beckwith Road

Project Start Date: 1/16/2017

Loyalton

96118

Square Footage of School/Site: 3,625

Average Peak Demand (kW):

Total Annual Electric Use (kWh): 38,332

Total Annual Electric Charges ($): $5,962.00

Total Annual Gas Use (therms):

Total Annual Gas Charges ($):

Total Annual Propane Use (gals): 662

Total Annual Propane Charges ($): $681.00

Total Annual Fuel Oil Use (gals):

Total Annual Fuel Oil Charges ($):

Electric Utility: Liberty Utilities

Gas Utility:

Electric Utility Account #: 88502081-88102016

Gas Utility Account #:

Electricity Natural Gas Other Fuels

School or Site Information

Benchmarking

Energy Efficiency Project Summary

Completion Date: 2/16/2018

Reminder: If the School/Site includes leased facilities, please include Building
                         Owner Certification in backup documentation.

Version 5

Measure Savings Source: Energy audit/feasibility study

Energy Bill Fiscal Year: 2015-16

School/Site Mailing Address:

City:

Zip Code: W/SF

kWh/SF10.57

Cost/SF$1.64

Therms/SF

Cost/SF

Gals/SF.18

Cost/SF$.19

Energy Use Intensity Calculator

Site Information

Energy Expenditure Plan Report

Prop. 39 Energy Expenditure Plan System

CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

November 28, 2016  -  Page 1 of 2

Demand
Savings

(kW)

Annual
Nat. Gas
SavingsEnergy Efficiency Measure

Annual 
Electric
SavingsDescription

Measure
Cost ($)

EEM
SIR

Rebates and
Grants ($)

Annual 
Propane 
Savings

Annual
Energy Cost
Savings ($)

Annual
Fuel Oil
Savings

9,023Retrofit interior surface mount strip,1X4,troffer fixtures with LED T8 Low Wattage Tubes. Retrofit interior recessed 
troffes with new 36 Watt LED fixtures. Change CFL to LED lamps.

.97$4,000.00$1,390.00 $39,766.00Lighting- Interior Fixture Retrofit

3,070The exterior lighting LED upgrade will include relamping the CFL containing fixtures with new LED twist and pin 
bulbs.

1.55$473.00 $5,661.00Lighting- Exterior Fixture Retrofit

1,323Add wireless ceiling sensors and wall switches .38$203.70 $9,942.00Lighting Controls

Size (kW AC) Year 1 Energy Cost Savings ($)Year 1 Production (kWh)Demand Savings (kW)
Rebates and

Grants ($)
Measure

SIR
Measure
Cost ($)

Photovoltaic Measure

Inverter Efficiency %

6.50 $1,87512,079.00 1.20$23,530.00

Site Project Summary

1.01Savings-to-investment Ratio (SIR)

Total Demand Savings

Total Annual Electric Savings 25,495

Total Annual Natural Gas Savings

Total Annual Fuel Oil Savings

Total Annual Cost Savings $3,941.70

Total Project Cost $78,899.00

Total Annual Propane Savings Total Rebates

Total Prop 39 Share $74,899.00

Total Cost Paid Under PPA

Because of the Sierra County Office of Education being located at the Loyalton Elementary Campus, the measures in the Sierra County Office of Education EEP have been selected in coordination with the Sierra Plumas School District.  
This is in order to avoid double-dipping between the measures selected by the two LEAs. This plan includes measures only at Loyalton Elementary campus where the Sierra County Office of Education is seated at whereas the Sierra 
Plumas Joint Unified School District EEP includes measures only at Downieville School.

On top of the lighting measures on the Special Ed. building where the County Office of Ed. is seated at, the EEP includes measures on jointly used 
space such as the 9 portables (encircled in the EEP report) and outside space.

Regarding the measures in the Sierra County Office of Education EEP, the following are proposed:

The interior lighting LED upgrade will include 
retrofitting of the interior surface mounted strip fixtures, troffer fixtures and 1X4 Fixtures with LED T8 Low Wattage Tubes. The interior recessed troffer fixtures will be retrofitted with new 36 Watt LED fixtures. The fixtures will be controlled 
by wireless ceiling sensors and wall switches. Finally, the Interior CFLs will be relamped with new LED bulbs.

The exterior lighting LED upgrade will include relamping the CFL containing fixtures with new LED twist and pin 
bulbs.

Finally, a 6.5 KW AC ground mount solar PV system is proposed. This solar PV system is estimated to produce 12,079 kWh annually. 





Energy Efficiency Narrative Description



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Bylaw 
Meetings And Notice 
 
BB 9320  
Board Bylaws 
 
Meetings of the Board of Education are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business.  In 
accordance with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall 
conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law.  To encourage community 
involvement in the schools, Board meetings shall provide opportunities for questions and comments by 
members of the public.  All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, 
policies, and administrative regulations. 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and place to hear, 
discuss, or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or district.  
(Government Code 54952.2) 
 
A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, 
directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Board.  However, an employee or district official may engage in separate 
conversations with Board members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not 
communicate the comments or position of any Board members to other Board members.  (Government Code 
54952.2) 
 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
 
In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the Superintendent or 
designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in 
accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  (Government Code 54953.2, 54954.1) 
 
Regular Meetings 
 
The Sierra County Board of Education shall hold one regular meeting each month per Education Code 1011. 
 
The Sierra County Board of Education regular meetings shall be held at 6 pm on the second Tuesday of every 
month with the exception of the month of June whereas the meetings may be held on the third Wednesday. 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District regular meetings shall be held immediately following the Sierra 
County Office of Education regular meeting. 
 
The president of either board or a majority of the board members may request to reschedule either regular 
meeting date and/or time if foreseen circumstances reveal rescheduling to be a benefit to board business, the 



2 

 

county office or school district. 
 
Meetings shall be held at Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville, CA, and the Sierra County 
Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA, in alternate months. Closed Session meetings 
may be held any time prior to or thereafter any regular or special meeting as deemed necessary by the board 
president. . 
 
At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely 
accessible to members of the public and on the district's Internet web site.  (Government Code 54954.2) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
 
Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less 
than 72 hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public 
inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose.  (Government Code 54957.5) 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
Special Meetings 
 
Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board 
members.  However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other 
compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in 
Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956) 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
 
Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members 
and the local media who have requested such notice in writing.  The notice also shall be posted on the district's 
Internet web site.  The notice shall be received at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting.  The notice 
shall also be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public.  The notice 
shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed.  No other 
business shall be considered at this meeting.  (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 
 
Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing 
a written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time 
it convenes.  (Government Code 54956) 
 
Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the 
Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's 
consideration. (Government Code 54954.3) 
 
Emergency Meetings 
 
In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened 
disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour 
notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.  The 
Board shall comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. 
(Government Code 54956.5) 
 
An emergency situation means either of the following:  (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that 



3 

 

severely impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board 
(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage) 
 
2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist activity, or 
threatened terrorist act that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide 
one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as 
determined by a majority of the members of the Board 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency 
meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of 
special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification must 
be exhausted.  If telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as 
soon after the meeting as possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall 
describe the purpose of the meeting and any action taken by the Board.  In the case of a dire emergency, the 
Board president or designee shall give such notice at or near the time he/she notifies the other members of the 
Board about the meeting.  (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a 
copy of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public 
place as soon after the meeting as possible.  (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
Adjourned/Continued Meetings 
 
A majority vote by the Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and place that 
shall be specified in the order of adjournment.  Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn such a meeting. 
If no Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a later time 
and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings.  (Government Code 54955) 
 
Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of adjournment/continuance shall 
be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held.  (Government Code 
54955) 
 
Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 
 
The Board may occasionally convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to 
receive information from staff or feedback from members of the public. 
 
The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships. 
(cf. 2000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 
 
Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the Board is attending a study session, 
retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting.  All such meetings shall comply with the Brown Act and shall be 
held in open session and within district boundaries.  Action items shall not be included on the agenda for these 
meetings. 
 



4 

 

Other Gatherings 
 
Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act 
provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves other 
than as part of the scheduled program:  (Government Code 54952.2) 
 
1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of 
general interest to the public or to school board members 
 
2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to address a 
topic of local community concern 
 
3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district 
 
4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency 
 
5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion 
 
6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board members 
who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 
 
Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to the 
Brown Act.  (Government Code 54952.2) 
 
Location of Meetings 
 
Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry or 
any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135, including, but not limited to, religion, sex, or sexual 
orientation.  In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility which is inaccessible to individuals with 
disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted.  
(Government Code 54961) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following:  (Government Code 
54954) 
 
1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to 
which the district is a party 
 
2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that 
the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property 
 
3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held 
within one of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law 
 
4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its boundaries or if its 
principal office is located outside the district 
 
5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, 



5 

 

solely to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials 
have jurisdiction 
 
6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting 
agenda is limited to items directly related to that facility 
 
7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so 
would reduce legal fees or costs 
 
8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques 
 
9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for 
Superintendent of the district 
 
10. Interview a potential employee from another district 
 
Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #1-10 above, shall still be subject to 
the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of the Board attends 
the meeting. 
 
If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe, meetings shall be held 
for the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so inform 
all news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid available means of 
communication.  (Government Code 54954) 
 
Teleconferencing 
 
A teleconference is a meeting of the Board linking various locations by electronic means through audio and/or 
video for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency in connection with any meeting or 
proceeding authorized by law. 
 
All of the Board shall participate from the primary board meeting location.  Inability to attend the meeting at 
the primary location is considered an absence. 
 
Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they 
are posted elsewhere.  Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the public.  (Government Code 
54953) 
 
All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public.  All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted 
in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the 
Board, including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location.  
(Government Code 54953) 
 
All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are 
teleconferenced.  The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the meeting at each 
teleconference location. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35140  Time and place of meetings 
35143  Annual organizational meeting, date, and notice 



6 

 

35144  Special meeting 
35145  Public meetings 
35145.5  Agenda; public participation; regulations 
35146  Closed sessions 
35147  Open meeting law exceptions and applications 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3511.1  Local agency executives 
11135  State programs and activities, discrimination 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 
54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 
54954  Time and place of regular meetings 
54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions 
54956  Special meetings; call; notice 
54956.5  Emergency meetings 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.160  Effective communications 
36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 
COURT DECISIONS 
Wolfe v. City of Fremont, (2006) 144 Cal.App. 544 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005) 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001) 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001) 
79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009 
INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS 
The ABCs of Open Government Laws 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 
Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.csba.org/Services/Services/GovernanceTechnology/AgendaOnline.aspx 
California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.ag.ca.gov 
Institute for Local Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 
League of California Cities:  http://www.cacities.org 
 
 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy             SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopted:  November 13, 2007         Sierraville, California 
revised:  January 13, 2009 
revised:  December 13, 2011 
revised:  February 14, 2012 
revised:  October 8, 2013          Loyalton, California 
revised:  August 11, 2015 
revised:  First Reading, December 13, 2016 

http://www.csba.org/


1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
TRANSPORTATION FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 
 
BP 3541.2  
Business and Noninstructional Operations  
  
The Governing Board desires to meet the transportation needs of students with disabilities to 
enable them to benefit from special education and related services. The district shall provide 
appropriate transportation services for a student with disabilities when the district is the student's 
district of residence and the transportation services are required by his/her individualized education 
program (IEP) or Section 504 accommodation plan.  The district shall make home-to-school 
transportation available for students at no cost to parents/guardians as specified in the student's 
IEP. 
 
 (cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish criteria and procedures for determining the most 
appropriate mode of transportation for an individual student based on identified needs as 
determined in the IEP or accommodation plan. 
 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 

Note: Education Code 56195.8 mandates that the district's policy set forth criteria for meeting the transportation 
needs of special education students. The CDE's Special Education Transportation Guidelines recommends that the 
IEP team give primary consideration to the specific needs of the student when making decisions about 
transportation services to be provided, and presents possible considerations which include, but are not limited to, 
those specified in the following paragraph. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The specific needs of the student shall be the primary consideration when an IEP team is 
determining the student's transportation needs.  Considerations may include, but are not limited to, 
the student's health needs, travel distances, physical accessibility and safety of 
streets and sidewalks, accessibility of public transportation systems, midday or other transportation 
needs, extended-year services, and, as necessary, implementation of a behavioral intervention plan. 
 

Note: Because the authority to make decisions regarding services for students with disabilities rests with the IEP 
team, the CDE's Special Education Transportation Guidelines recommends that IEP team leaders and members be 
provided with information regarding available district transportation resources. The guidelines also recommend 
that the IEP team identify with specificity the mode of transportation (e.g., walking/wheeling, riding the regular 
school bus, utilizing available public transportation, riding a special bus, being transported by parent/guardian) 
and when, from where, and to where transportation will be provided.  

 



2 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide IEP teams with information about district 
transportation services in order to assist them in making decisions as to the mode, schedule, and 
location of transportation services that may be available to each student with disabilities. The IEP 
team may communicate with district transportation staff and/or invite transportation staff to attend 
IEP team meetings where the student's transportation needs will be discussed.  
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 56040, a student who is eligible to receive special education instruction and 
related services must be provided such instruction and services at no cost. Special education transportation is 
defined in 34 CFR 300.34 as a related service. Thus, transportation fees may not be charged to students whose IEP 
requires the provision of transportation services, even if the district charges transportation fees to other students.  
See BP 3250 - Transportation Fees. 

 
Transportation services specified in a student's IEP or Section 504 plan shall be provided at no 
cost to the student or his/her parent/guardian. 
 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
 

Note: Education Code 48915.5 provides that the district must provide alternative transportation at no cost 
whenever a disabled student is excluded from school bus transportation for any reason, such as suspension, 
expulsion, or other reason. If a student receiving special education services is excluded from transportation as a 
disciplinary measure and is not provided another mode of transportation, it may constitute a significant change of 
placement which would require a meeting of the IEP team to review the student's IEP. 

 
If a student whose IEP or accommodation plan specifies transportation needs is excluded from 
school bus transportation for any reason, such as suspension, expulsion, or other reason, the district 
shall provide alternative transportation at no cost to the student or parent/guardian.  (Education 
Code 48915.5)   
 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
  
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any mobile seating devices used on district buses 
are compatible with bus securement systems required by 49 CFR 571.222.  (Education Code 
56195.8)  
 
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 
 
As necessary, a student with disabilities may be accompanied on school transportation by a service 
animal, as defined in 28 CFR 35.104, including a specially trained guide dog, signal dog, or service 
dog.  (Education Code 39839; Civil Code 54.1-54.2; 28 CFR 35.136) 
 
(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 
 
When transportation is not specifically required by the IEP or Section 504 plan of a student with 
disabilities, the student shall be subject to the rules and policies regarding regular transportation 
offerings within the district. 
 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 
39807.5  Payment of transportation cost 
39839  Guide dogs, signal dogs, and service dogs on bus 
41850-41854  Allowances for transportation 



3 
 

48300-48315  Alternative interdistrict attendance program 
48915.5  Expulsion of students with exceptional needs 
56040  No cost for special education and related services 
56195.8  Adoption of policies 
56327  Assessment for special education and related services 
56345  Individualized education program 
56365-56366.1  Nonpublic nonsectarian schools or agencies 
CIVIL CODE 
54.1-54.2  Service animals 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15243  Physically handicapped minors 
15271  Exclusion from report 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.104  Definitions 
35.136  Service animals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
104.4   Equal opportunity under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 
300.1-300.818  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, especially: 
300.34  Transportation defined as related service 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 49 
571.222  Federal requirements for bus securement systems 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Special Education Transportation Guidelines 
Pupil Fees, Deposits and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Protecting Students with Disabilities: Frequently Asked Questions About Section 504 and the Education of 
Children with Disabilities, 2009 
Questions and Answers on Serving Children with Disabilities Eligible for Transportation, 2009 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
Policy     SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  April 10, 2007     Sierraville, California 
revised:  December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 
 
 



1 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
PRERETIREMENT PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT 
 
Classified Personnel AR 4217.11 
Personnel 
 
District employees may reduce their workload from full-time to part-time for a period not to exceed five years. 
 
Regulations allowing employees to reduce their workload include but are not limited to the following  
 
1.  Employees must be 55 years of age before they may reduce their workload. 
2.  Employees must have completed at least 10 years of full-time service to the district. 
3.  Employees must have completed 
 
Note: The following administrative regulation is for use only by districts that choose to offer a reduced workload program as 
authorized by Education Code 45139 and Government Code 20905. In such districts, classified employees who are members of 
the Public Employees' Retirement System may reduce their workload from full time to part time while continuing to receive the 
service credit and other benefits they would have received as full-time employees and having their retirement allowance 
calculated based on their final compensation as if employed on a full-time basis, provided that the district and employee both 
contribute to the retirement fund the amount that would have been contributed if the employee was employed on a full-time basis. 
For any district that chooses to allow classified employees to reduce their workload in this manner, Education Code 45139 
mandates that its regulation include at least the conditions specified in items #1-9 below. 
 
When the Governing Board has adopted the reduced workload program, any classified employee may reduce 
his/her workload from full time to part time in accordance with applicable law, district regulations, and 
collective bargaining agreement. 
 
When so authorized, any classified employee who is a member of the Public Employees' Retirement System 
may reduce his/her workload from full time to part time without losing retirement benefits, if all of the 
following conditions are met:  (Education Code 45139) 
 
1. The employee shall have reached the age of 55 prior to the workload reduction. 
 
2. The employee shall have been employed full time in a classified position for at least 10 years, of 

which the immediately preceding five years were full-time employment. 
 
3.During the period immediately preceding a request for reduction in workload, the employee shall have been 
employed full time in a classified position for a total of at least five years of full-time service immediately 
prior to requesting a reduction in workload. 
 
4.  The five years required in #3 must have passed without a break in service.    
 
5.  4. The part-time employment option is availableof part-time employment shall be exercised at the 

employee's request of the employee and maycan be revoked only with the mutual consent of the 
employee and the Board of Education district. 

 
5. The employee shall be paid a salary that is the pro rata share of their full-time salarythe salary he/she 

would be earning had the employee not elected to exercise the option of part-time employment. 
 



2 
Note: Education Code 45139 requires the district to provide health insurance benefits pursuant to Government Code 53201 to 
an employee who reduces his/her workload, in the same manner as full-time employees. Thus, if full-time employees are 
required to make payments towards their health insurance, then an employee who wishes to reduce his/her workload must make 
the payment to receive the health insurance benefit.   

 
6. The employee shall retain all other rights and benefits for which he/she makes the payments that 

would be required if he/she remained in full-time employment. The employee shall receive health 
benefits in the same manner as a full-time classified employee.  

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
7.  MinimumThe minimum part-time employment shall be the equivalent of one-half of the number of 

dayshours of service required by the employee's contract during thehis/her final year of service in a 
full-time serviceclassified position. 

 
8.   The employee shall receiveperiod of the same health benefits as those received by fullpart-time 

employeesemployment shall not exceed five years. 
 
9.  The employee shall retain all other rights and benefits as long as he/she makes the payments for them that 
would be required if he/she still worked full time. 
 
10.  9. The period of part-time employment shall not extend beyond the end of the school year during which 

the employee reaches his/her 70th birthday. 
 
Prior to the reduction of an employee's workload, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the employee's 
eligibility for the reduced workload program.  (Government Code 20905) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the necessary records to separately identify each employee 
who participates in the reduced workload program.  (Government Code 20905) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
The district may allow any classified employee who is not eligible for the reduction of workload pursuant to 
Education Code 45139 to reduce his/her workload from full time to part time after determining that it is in 
the best interest of the district.  In any such case, the Board shall specify the terms and conditions under 
which the reduction in workload shall take place. 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
45139  Reduced workload for classified employees 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
20000-21703 Public Employees' Retirement System, especially: 
20905  Reduced workload  program, classified employees 
53201 Health and welfare benefits 
COURT DECISIONS 
Praiser v. Biggs Unified School District (2001) 87 Cal.App.4th 398 

Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
California Public Employees' Retirement System:  http://www.calpers.ca.gov 

 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATIONS 
Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 
revised:     December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 
 



1 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 

Students AR 5125.3(a)  

 

CHALLENGING STUDENT RECORDS 

 
Note: The following administrative regulation provides a process by which, pursuant to Education Code 49070, parents/guardians 

and students who are 18 years old or attending a postsecondary institution may request an amendment to any incorrect, inaccurate, 

or misleading information in student records maintained by the district.  For details of student records that the district may maintain, 

see BP/AR 5125 - Student Records.  

 

At the beginning of each school year or, for a student enrolled after the beginning of the school year, at the time 

of enrollment, parents/guardians shall be notified of the availability of the following procedures for challenging 

the contents of student records. Any student who is 18 years of age or attends a postsecondary institution shall 

have the sole right to challenge the contents of his/her records in accordance with the following procedures.   

(Education Code 49061, 49063) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

Procedures for Challenging Records 

 

The custodial parent/guardian of any student may submit to the Superintendent or designee a written request to 

correct or remove from his/her child's records any information concerning the child which he/she alleges to be 

any of the following:  (Education Code 49070; 34 CFR 99.20) 

 

1.   Inaccurate 

 

2.   An unsubstantiated personal conclusion or inference 

 

3.   A conclusion or inference outside of the observer's area of competence 

 

4.   Not based on the personal observation of a named person with the time and place of the observation noted 

 

5.   Misleading 

 

6.   In violation of the privacy or other rights of the student 

 

Within 30 days of receiving a request to correct or remove any information from a record, the Superintendent or 

designee shall meet with the parent/guardian and the district employee who recorded that information, if he/she 

is presently employed by the district.  (Education Code 49070) 

 

If the challenge involves a student's grade, the teacher who gave the grade shall be given an opportunity to state, 

orally and/or in writing, the reasons for which the grade was given. Insofar as practicable, the teacher shall be 

included in all discussions related to any grade change. In the absence of clerical or mechanical error, fraud, bad 

faith, or incompetency, a student's grade as determined by the teacher shall be final.  (Education Code 49066) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

Style Definition: Normal: Font: (Default) Times New

Roman, 12 pt, Justified, Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 

single, Tab stops:  6.25", Right

Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: 18 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5",

Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space between Latin

and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and

numbers

Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers, Tab stops:  1.76", Left



2 

When a student grade is challenged, the teacher who gave the grade shall be given an opportunity to state orally, 

in writing, or both, the reasons for which the grade was given.  Insofar as practicable, he/she shall be included in 

 

Resolution of Challenge/Appeals 

 

After considering all discussions related to any grade change.  In the absence of clerical or mechanical error, 

fraud, bad faith or incompetency, the student's grade as determined by the teacher shall be final.   

relevant(Education Code 49066) 

 

Within 30 days of receiving a request to correct or remove information from a record, the Superintendent or 

designee shall meet with the parent/guardian and with the employee (if still employed) who recorded the 

information in question.  The Superintendent shall then sustain or deny the parent/guardian's allegations.  

(Education Code 49070) 

 

If the parent/guardian's allegations are sustained, the Superintendent or designee shall order the correction or 

removal and destruction of the information.  (Education Code 49070) 

 

If the Superintendent or designee denies the allegations, the parent/guardian may write, within 30 days to, appeal 

the decision in writing to the Governing Board of Education. . Within 30 days of receiving the written appeal, the 

Board shall meet in closed session with the parent/guardian and the district employee (if still employed) who 

recorded the information in question. , if he/she is presently employed by the district. The Board shall then decide 

whether or not to sustain or deny the allegations.  If it sustains any or allThe decision of the allegations, the 

SuperintendentBoard shall immediately correct or remove and destroy the information from the student's 

recordsbe final.  (Education Code 49070) 
 (cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 

 

The decision If the Board sustains any or all of the Board shall be final.  If the decisionallegations, the 

Superintendent or designee shall immediately order the correction or removal and destruction of the 

Superintendent or Board is unfavorable topertinent information from the student's records and shall inform the 

parent/guardian, in writing that the information has been corrected or destroyed.  (Education Code 49070) 

 

If the parent/guardian shall have thedoes not file an appeal, or if the appeal is denied by the Board, the 

parent/guardian shall be informed of his/her right to submit a written objection to the information. Any statement 

of objections.  This statement shall become asubmitted by the parent/guardian shall be maintained with the 

contested part of the student's record for as long as.  (Education Code 49070) 

 

Both the Superintendentrecord is maintained and shall be disclosed whenever the Board have the optionrelated 

part of appointingthe record is disclosed.  (Education Code 49070; 34 CFR 99.21) 

 

Hearing Panel 

 

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to use a hearing panel to assist in making the decision.  

The hearing panel determinations regarding challenges to student records, as authorized by Education Code 49071. 

 

The Superintendent or designee and/or the Board may be used at the discretion of the Superintendent or the Board 

appoint a hearing panel to assist in 

making determinations regarding a challenge to student records or an appeal, as applicable, provided that the 

parent/guardian consentsgives written consent to releasing relevant student record information to the panel 

members. Such a hearing panel shall consist of the following persons:  (Education Code 49070, 49071) 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5",

Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space between Latin

and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and

numbers



3 

The right to challenge 

1. A chairperson who is a record becomes the sole rightprincipal of the student when the student becomes 

18 or attends a postsecondary institution.  (public school other than the school at which the record is on 

file 

 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49061)49071, the hearing panel must include a certificated employee appointed by the chair of 

the district's certificated employee council or, if no such council exists, a certificated employee appointed by the parent/guardian. 

Item #2 below may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

At2. A certificated employee appointed by the beginningdistrict's certificated employee council or, if no such 

council exists, by a parent/guardian 

 

3. A parent/guardian appointed by the Superintendent or designee or the Board, whoever convenes the panel 

 

If possible, the members of each school year, parents/guardiansthe hearing panel shall not be notified of the 

availability of the above procedures for challengingacquainted with the student records., his/her parent/guardian, 

or the employee who recorded the information, except when the  

parent/guardian appoints the certificated employee pursuant to item #2 above.  (Education Code 4906349071) 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

The panel shall be provided with verbatim copies of the information that is the subject of the controversy. The 

panel shall, in closed session, hear the parent/guardian's objections to the student record and, if the employee is 

presently employed by the district, the employee's testimony. The proceedings of the hearing shall not be 

disclosed or discussed by panel members except in their official capacities. The panel shall submit, to the 

Superintendent or designee or the Board as applicable, its written findings setting forth the facts and decisions of 

the panel.  (Education Code 49071) 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
49061  Definitions 
49063  Notification of parents of their rights 
49066  Grades; change of grade; physical education grade 
49070  Challenging content of records 
49071  Hearing panel 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act of 1974 
-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy, especially: 

99.20-99.22 Procedures for amending educational records 
 

 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 

revised:  December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 10 pt, Italic



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 

 

Instruction AR 6143(a) 

 

Grades 1-6 

COURSES OF STUDY 

 

Note:  Education Code requirements for courses of study are generally classified into requirements for grades 1-6 

and 7-12. Therefore, K-8 districts and high school districts need to collaborate with appropriate area districts to 

ensure that all required courses are offered sometime during grades 7-12. 

 

The district should select the sections below ("Grades 1-6" and/or "Grades 7-12") that correspond with the grade 

levels it offers. 

 

Grades 1-6 

 

Courses of study for grades 1-6 shall include the following: 

 
(cf. 6146.5 - Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements) 

 

1. English: knowledge and appreciation of language and literature, and the skills of speaking, reading, 

listening, spelling, handwriting, and composition (Education Code 51210) 

 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 

 

2. Mathematics: concepts, operational skills, and problem solving (Education Code 51210) 

 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 

 

3. Social sciences: age-appropriate instruction drawing upon the disciplines of anthropology, 

economics, geography, history, political science, psychology, and sociology, including instruction in:  

(Education Code 51210) 

 

a. The history, resources, development, and government of California and the United States 

 

Instruction shall include the early history of California and a study of the role and 

contributions of all men and women. Instruction shall also include, Native Americans, African 

Americans, Mexican Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, European Americans, 

lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender Americans, persons with disabilities, and members of 

other ethnic and cultural groups to the economic, political, and social development of 

California and the United States.,with particular emphasis on portraying the role of these 

groups in contemporary society.  (Education Code 51204.5, 60040) 

 
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 
(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 



2 

 

b. The development of the American economic system, including the role of the entrepreneur 

and labor 

 

c. The relations of persons to their human and natural environments 

 

d. Eastern and western cultures and civilizations 

 

e. Contemporary issues 

 

f. The wise use of natural resources 

 
(cf. 6142.5 - Environmental Education) 

 

4. Science: biological and physical aspects, with emphasis on experimental inquiry and the place of 

humans in ecological systems  (Education Code 51210) 

 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

 

5. Visual and performing arts: instruction in dance, music, theatre, and visual arts aimed at developing 

aesthetic appreciation and creative expression  (Education Code 51210) 

 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 

 

Note: Education Code 51202 requires that certain health-related topics be addressed at "the appropriate elementary 

and secondary grade levels" during grades K-12. Districts may revise #6a-e below to indicate topics that will be 

addressed in grades K-6. 

 

Education Code 51203 requires the Board to adopt regulations specifying the grade(s) and course(s) in which drug 

and alcohol education will be given. For language fulfilling this mandate, see AR 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs. 

 

6. Health: principles and practices of individual, family, and community health, including instruction at 

the appropriate grade levels and subject areas in:  (Education Code 51202, 51210) 

 

a. Personal and public safety and accident prevention, including instruction in emergency first 

aid, hemorrhage control, treatment for poisoning, resuscitation techniques, and 

cardiopulmonary resuscitation when appropriate equipment is available 

 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

 

b. Fire prevention 

 

c. The protection and conservation of resources, including the necessity for the protection of the 

environment 

 

d. Venereal disease 

 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 

 

e. The effects of alcohol, narcotics, drugs, and tobacco upon the human body 

 



3 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

 

Note: The following item is optional pursuant to Education Code 51202. 

 

7. Physical education, with emphasis on physical activities conducive to health and vigor of body and 

mind (Education Code 51210) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 
Note: Item #8 below is optional. Education Code 51210.5 authorizes age-appropriate instruction on violence awareness and 

prevention within any area of study listed in items #1-7 above. Pursuant to Education Code 51210.5, such instruction may 

include personal testimony in the form of oral or video histories that illustrate the economic and cultural effects of violence 

within a city, the state, and the country. See BP 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction. 

 

8. Violence awareness and prevention 

 

9. Career awareness exploration 

 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

 

Grades 7-12 
 

Courses of study for grades 7-12 shall include the following: 

 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.5 - Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 

 

1. English:  knowledge and appreciation of literature, language, and composition, and the skills of 

reading, listening, and speaking  (Education Code 51220) 

 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 

 

2. Social sciences: age-appropriate instruction drawing upon the disciplines of anthropology, 

economics, geography, history, political science, psychology, and sociology, with instruction in:  

(Education Code 51220) 

 

a. The history, resources, development, and government of California and the United States, 

including instruction in: 

 

The early history of California and a study of the role and contributions of allboth men and women. Â Instruction 

shall also include, Native Americans, African Americans, Mexican Americans, Asian Americans, Pacific Islanders, 

European Americans, lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender Americans, persons with disabilities, and members of 

other ethnic and cultural groups to the economic, political, and social development of California and the United 

States, with particular emphasis on portraying . 

 

(2) World War II and the role of Americans and Filipinos these groups in that war 

contemporary society  (Education Code 51204.5) 

 

Note:  Education Code 51221.3 and 51221.4 encourage, but do not require, instruction on the topics described in 

optional subitems #(2)-(4) below. These items may be modified or deleted to reflect district practice.   



4 

 
 

For districts that choose to offer such instruction, Education Code 51221.3 and 51221.4 encourage that a component 

be drawn from personal testimony, especially in the form of oral or video history.  If oral histories are used, they 

must conform to the requirements of Education Code 51221.3 and 51221.4. See BP 6142.94 - History-Social 

Science Instruction. 

 

(2) World War II, including the role of Americans and Filipino Americans who served in 

the United States Army during that time  

 

(3) The Vietnam War, including the "Secret War" in Laos and role of Southeast Asians in 

that war 

 

(4) The Bracero program, under which temporary contract laborers were imported 

pursuant to a 1942 agreement between the United States and Mexico 

 

b. The American legal system, the operation of the juvenile and adult criminal justice systems, 

and the rights and duties of citizens under the criminal and civil law and the state and federal 

constitutions 

 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

 

c. The development of the American economic system, including the role of the entrepreneur 

and labor 

 

d. The relations of persons to their human and natural environments, including the wise use of 

natural resources (Education Code 51221) 

 
(cf. 6142.5 - Environmental Education) 

 

e. Eastern and western cultures and civilizations 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 51220, instruction related to human rights issues, as provided in item #2f below, may include 

the study of the Armenian genocide. Education Code 51226.3 encourages the incorporation of oral testimony into instruction 

in human rights, including the Armenian, Cambodian, Darfur, and Rwandan genocides. 

 

f. Human rights issues, with particular attention to the study of the inhumanity of genocide, 

(which may include, but is not limited to, the Armenian, Cambodian, Darfur, and Rwandan 

genocides), slavery, and the Holocaust 

 

g. Contemporary issues 

 
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 
(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 

3. Foreign language(s): understanding, speaking, reading, and writing, beginning not later than grade 7 

(Education Code 51220) 

 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 

 



5 

 

4. Physical education: with emphasis on physical activities conducive to health and vigor of body and 

mind, as required by Education Code 51222 (Education Code 51220) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 

5. Science: physical and biological aspects; emphasis on basic concepts, theories, and processes of 

scientific investigation and on the place of humans in ecological systems; appropriate applications of 

the interrelation and interdependence of the sciences (Education Code 51220) 

 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
 

6. Mathematics: mathematical understandings, operational skills, and problem-solving procedures; 

algebra (Education Code 51220, 51224.5) 

 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 

 

7. Visual and performing arts: dance, music, theatre, and visual arts, with emphasis upon development 

of aesthetic appreciation and creative expression (Education Code 51220) 

 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 

 

8. Applied arts: consumer and homemaking education, industrial arts, general business education, or 

general agriculture (Education Code 51220) 

 

9. Career technical/vocational-technical education: in the occupations and in the numbers appropriate 

to the personnel needs of the state and community served and relevant to the career desires and needs 

of students (Education Code 51220) 
 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 

10.  HIV/AIDS prevention (Education Code 51934) 

Note: Education Code 51934 requires that students be provided comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention 

instruction at least once in middle school or junior high school and at least once in high school. See BP/AR 6142.1 

- Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction for required components of such instruction. 

 

Education Code 51934, as amended by AB 329 (Ch. 398, Statutes of 2015), requires that comprehensive sexual 

health education include information about sexual harassment, sexual assault, adolescent relationship abuse, 

intimate partner violence, and sex trafficking. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 51225.36, as added by SB 

695 (Ch. 424, Statutes of 2015), districts that require a course in health education for high school graduation must 

include instruction in sexual harassment and violence with specified components. 

 

10. Comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention  (Education Code 51225.36, 51934) 

 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 

 

Note: Education Code 51202 requires that certain health-related topics be addressed at "the appropriate elementary 

and secondary grade levels" during grades K-12. Districts may revise item #11 below to indicate topics that will be 

addressed in grades 7-12. 

 

Education Code 51203 requires the Board to adopt regulations specifying the grade(s) and course(s) in which drug 

and alcohol education will be given. For language fulfilling this mandate, see AR 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs. 



6 

 

 

11. Personal and public safety, accident prevention and health, including instruction in:  (Education Code 

51202, 51203) 

 

a. Emergency first aid, hemorrhage control, treatment for poisoning, resuscitation techniques, 

and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) when appropriate equipment is available 

 
Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that require a course in health education for high school graduation; see 

BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. Pursuant to Education Code 51225.6, as added by AB 1719 (Ch. 556, 

2016), such districts are required to include instruction in performing compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), 

as described below, beginning in the 2018-19 school year. Such instruction must be based on national evidence-based 

emergency cardiovascular care guidelines for the performance of compression-only CPR, such as those developed by the 

American Heart Association or the American Red Cross, and must include hands-on practice in compression-only CPR. Before 

the start of the 2017-18 school year, the CDE is required to provide guidance on how to implement this requirement, including, 

but not limited to, who may provide instruction. 

 

Education Code 51225.6, as added, also encourages districts to provide students with general information on the use and 

importance of an automated external defibrillator. 

 

Beginning in the 2018-19 school year, instruction shall be provided in compression-only CPR. 

Such instruction shall be based on national evidence-based guidelines and shall include hands-

on practice in compression-only CPR.  (Education Code 51225.6) 

 

b. Fire prevention 

 

c. The protection and conservation of resources, including the necessity for the protection of the 

environment 

 

d. Venereal disease 

 

e. The effects of alcohol, narcotics, drugs, and tobacco upon the human body and upon prenatal 

development 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

 

Note:  The following two items are optional pursuant to Education Code 51202. 

 
Note: Item #12 is optional. Education Code 51220.3 authorizes age-appropriate instruction on violence awareness and 

prevention within any area of study listed above for grades 7-12. 

 

12. Violence awareness and prevention 

 

Note: Item #13 is optional. Education Code 51226.7, as added by AB 2016 (Ch. 327, Statutes of 2016), requires 

the SBE to adopt a model curriculum in ethnic studies by March 31, 2020 and encourages districts to offer a course 

in ethnic studies based on that model curriculum as an elective course in social sciences or English language arts in 

at least one grade level during grades 9-12. At their discretion, districts may choose to offer a course in ethnic 

studies prior to the availability of the model curriculum. 

 

13. Ethnic studies 

 



7 

 

Note:  Education Code 51220.5 requires the equivalent content of a one-semester course in parenting skills and 

education in grades 7 and/or 8, subject to funding which was not subsequently appropriated; thus the following 

paragraph is currently optional. 

 

In addition, the course of study for grade 7 and/or 8 may include parenting skills and education that address 

at least all of the following:  (Education Code 51220.5)  1.Child, including, but not limited to, child growth 

and development, parental responsibilities, household budgeting, child abuse and neglect issues, personal 

hygiene, maintenance of healthy relationships, teen parenting issues, and self-esteem.  (Education Code 

51220.5) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

 

High schools shall offer automobile driver education that includes instruction in:  (Education Code 51220, 

51220.1, 51220.4) 

 

1. Vehicle Code provisions and other relevant state laws 

 

2. Proper acceptance of personal responsibility in traffic 

 

3. Appreciation of the causes, seriousness, and consequences of traffic accidents 

 

4. Knowledge and attitudes necessary for the safe operation of motor vehicles 

 

5. The safe operation of motorcycles 

 

6. The dangers involved in consuming alcohol or drugs in connection with the operation of a motor 

vehicle 

 

7. The rights and duties of a motorist pertaining to pedestrians and the rights and duties of pedestrians 

pertaining to traffic laws and traffic safety 

 

Certification of College Preparatory Courses 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12 and may be revised to reflect 

district practice.  Among the criteria for admission to the University of California (UC) or California State 

University system is a requirement that students satisfactorily complete 15 units of specified courses ("a-g" courses).  

In order to qualify as an "a-g" course, the course must first be submitted to and approved by UC.  The district or 

school should develop course descriptions using the templates provided by UC and submit them through UC's 

online system. 

 

According to the Frequently Asked Questions on UC's web site, UC considers the principal to be the certifying 

agent of the school, although the district's curriculum coordinator or an assistant principal or head counselor from 

the school may be assigned this responsibility. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the position in 

the district or school(s) that is responsible for submitting and updating "a-g" courses. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall identify courses in history-social science, English, mathematics, 

laboratory science, languages other than English, visual and performing arts, career technical education, and 

college preparatory electives that may qualify for designation as "a-g" college preparatory courses.  He/she 

shall submit course information to the University of California (UC) including, but not necessarily limited 

to, the course title, subject area, grade level(s), unit value, a brief course description, prerequisites and co-



8 

 

requisites, texts and supplemental instructional materials used in the course, whether the school is seeking 

designation of the course as an honors course, and whether the course is classified as a career technical 

education or regional occupational program course.  He/she also shall electronically submit updates to UC 

whenever course content changes or a course will not be offered in a particular year. 

 

Notification to Students in Grades 9-12 
 

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide written notice to 

parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12 that, to the extent possible, shall not exceed one page in length 

and that includes all of the following:  (Education Code 51229) 

 

1. A brief explanation of the course requirements for admission to UC and the California State 

University (CSU) 

 

2. A list of the current UC and CSU web sites that help students and their families learn about college 

admission requirements and that list high school courses that have been certified by UC as satisfying 

the requirements for admission to UC and CSU 

 

3. A brief description of what career technical education is, as defined by the California Department of 

Education (CDE) 

 

4. The Internet address for the portion of the CDE web site where students can learn more about career 

technical education 

 

5. Information about how students may meet with school counselors to help them choose courses that 

will meet college admission requirements and/or enroll in career technical education courses 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 

 

 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Regulation  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised:     May 8, 2012  

revised:      December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 
 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
Instruction AR 6173 
 
EDUCATION FOR HOMELESS CHILDREN 
 
 
Definitions 
 

Note: The federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 USC 11434a) defines "homeless students" as provided below. 
This law applies to foster youth in certain circumstances (i.e., when they are living in emergency or transitional shelters) but, as 
amended by P.L. 114-95, the definition of "homeless students" no longer includes youth who are awaiting foster care placement. 
See BP/AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth for state law regarding foster children. 

 
Homeless students means students who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence and includes:  
(Education Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11434a) 
 
1. Students who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a 

similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative 
adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals; 
or are awaiting foster care placement 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 
2. Students who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or 

ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings 
 
3. Students who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or 

train stations, or similar settings 
 
4. Migratory children who qualify as homeless because they are living in conditions described in items #1-

3 above 
 
5. Unaccompanied youth includes youth who are not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian.  (20 
USC 11434a) 
 

Note: The following definition of "school of origin" generally reflects Education Code 48852.7, which exceeds the definition in 42 
USC 11432 and is consistent with the state definition of "school of origin" that applies to foster youth. However, as amended by P.L. 
114-95, 42 USC 11432 includes preschools in the definition as provided below. 

 
School of origin means the school that the homeless student attended when permanently housed or the school in 
which he/she was last enrolled., including a preschool. If the school  
the homeless student attended when permanently housed is different from the school in which he/she was last 
enrolled, or if there is some other school that he/she attended within the preceding 15 months and with which 
he/she is connected, the district liaison shall determine, in consultation with and with the agreement of the 
homeless student and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, and in the best 
interests of the homeless student, which school shall be deemed the school of origin.  (Education Code 48852.7; 
42 USC 11432) 



2 
 
 

Note: Education Code 48850 expresses legislative intent that the "best interest" of a homeless student or foster youth includes 
educational stability as well as placement in the least restrictive educational program, as provided below. Education Code 48853 
further provides that the placement of a foster youth should consider the student's access to academic resources, services, and 
extracurricular and enrichment activities. For consistency with the definition of "best interest" applicable to foster youth (see AR 
6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth), the following definition also reflects Education Code 48853. 

 
Best interest means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a homeless student, 
consideration is given to, among other factors, educational stability, the opportunity to be educated in the least 
restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve academic progress, and the student's access to academic 
resources, services, and extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all district students.  
(Education Code 48850, 48853; 42 USC 11432) 
 
District Liaison 
 

Note: Pursuant to 42 USC 11432, districts are required to designate an appropriate staff person, who may also be a coordinator for 
other federal programs, as a district liaison for homeless students. The district should fill in the blanks below with the title or position, 
address, and phone number of the district liaison. 

 
The Superintendent designates the following staff person as the district liaison for homeless students:  (42 USC 
11432) 
 
Superintendent of Schools or Homeless Liaison Designee 
109 Beckwith Road 
P. O. Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 96118 

(530) 993-1660 Ext *837 
 
Note: The duties of the district liaison for homeless students are listed in 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95, and are 
specified below. Also see the U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) Non-Regulatory Guidance Education for Homeless Children 
and Youths Program and the Homeless Liaison Toolkit developed by the National Center for Homeless Education. 

 
The district's liaison for homeless students shall:  (Education Code 48852.5; 42 USC 11432) 
 
1. Ensure that homeless students are identified by school personnel and through coordinatedoutreach and 

coordination activities with other entities and agencies 
 
(cf. 1400 - Relations betweenBetween Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced-Price Meals) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
 
2. Ensure that homeless students enrollare enrolled in, and have a full and equal opportunity to succeed in, 

district schools 
 
3. Ensure that homeless families and studentschildren and youth have access to and receive educational 

services for which they are eligible, including services through Head Start and Early Head Start programs, 
early intervention services under Part C of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and 
other preschool programs administered by the district 

 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 



3 
 
4. Ensure that homeless families and students receive referrals to health care services, dental services, 

mental health and substance abuse services, housing services, and other appropriate services 
 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
45. Inform parents/guardians of the educational and related opportunities available to their children and ensure 

that they are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
56. Disseminate notice of the educational rights of homeless students in district schools that provide services 

to locations frequented by parents/guardians of homeless children and at places where they receive 
services, such asyouth and by unaccompanied youth, including schools, family shelters, public libraries, 
and hunger relief agencies (soup kitchens)). The rights shall be presented in a manner and form 
understandable to the parents/guardians of homeless students and unaccompanied youth. 

 
67. Mediate enrollment disputes in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation and the 

section "Resolving Enrollment Disputes" below 
 
78. Fully inform parents/guardians of homeless students and unaccompanied youth of all transportation 

services, including transportation to the school of origin, and assist them in accessing transportation to the 
school of choice 

 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services) 
 

Note: P.L. 114-95 amended 42 USC 11432 to add the duties specified in items #9-10 below. 
 
9. Ensure that school personnel providing services to homeless students receive professional development 

and other support 
 
8. When notified pursuant to Education Code 48918.1,4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
10. Ensure that unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school, have opportunities to meet the same challenging 

state academic standards established for other students, and are informed of their status as independent 
students under 20 USC 1087vv and that they may receive assistance from the district liaison to receive 
verification of their independent student status for purposes of applying for federal student aid pursuant 
to 20 USC 1090  

 
11. Coordinate and collaborate with state coordinators and community and school personnel responsible for 

the provision of education and related services to homeless students, including the provision of 
comprehensive data to the state coordinator as required by law 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48918.1, the district liaison must be notified before the expulsion hearing for a homeless student, 
when the student's alleged violation does not require a mandatory recommendation for expulsion; see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and 
Expulsion/Due Process. When so notified, the district liaison is expected to assist the student and, as necessary, advocate on the 
student's behalf. 
 
Furthermore, pursuant to Education Code 48915.5, if the homeless student has also been identified as an individual with a disability 
and the district has proposed a change of placement due to an act for which decision to recommend expulsion is discretionary, the 



4 
 

district liaison must be invited to participate in the individualized education program team meeting that makes a manifestation 
determination pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1415(k)). 

 
In addition, when notified pursuant to Education Code 48918.1, the district liaison shall assist, facilitate, or 
represent a homeless student who is undergoing a disciplinary proceeding that could result in his/her expulsion 
.  
9. When notified pursuant to Education Code 48915.5, the district liaison shall participate in an 
individualized education program team meeting to make a manifestation determination regarding the behavior of 
a student with a disability. 
 
 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
 
10. Assist a homeless student to obtain records necessary for his/her enrollment into or transfer out of 
district schools, including immunization, medical, and academic records 

Note: 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95, requires that the California Department of Education (CDE) publish a list of 
district liaisons on its web site. The CDE collects the name and contact information of district 
 
liaisons through the consolidated application process, along with information about district compliance with federal program 
requirements.  

 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform homeless children and youth, their parents/guardians, school 
personnel, service providers, and advocates working with homeless families of the duties of the district's liaison. 
He/she shall also provide the name and contact information of the district's liaison to the California Department 
of Education (CDE) for publishing on the CDE's web site.  (42 USC 11432) 
 
Enrollment 
 
The district shall make placement decisions for homeless students based on the student's best interest.  (42 USC 
11432) 
 

When making Note: 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95, specifies factors that must be considered in determining a 
placement decision for a homelessstudent's best interest, as provided below.  

 
In determining the best interest of the student, the Superintendent or designee may district shall consider student-
centered factors related to the student's best interest, including factors related to the impact of mobility on 
achievement, education, health, and safety, giving priority to the request of the student's parent/guardian or, in 
the case of an unaccompanied youth, the youth.  (42 USC 11432) 
 

Note: The following optional paragraph presents examples of factors that may be considered in making placement decisions based 
on a student's "best interest," and may be revised to reflect district practice.   

 
Such factors may include, but are not limited to, the age of the student, the distance of the commute and the impact 
it may have on the student's education, personal safety issues, the student's need for special instruction, the length 
of anticipated stay in the temporary shelter or other temporary location, likely area of future housing, school 
placement of siblings, and the time remaining in the school year. 
 
However, placement decisions shall not be based on whether a homeless student lives with his/her homeless 
parent/guardian or has been temporarily placed elsewhere.  (42 USC 11432) 



5 
 
 
In the case of an unaccompanied youth, the liaison shall assist in placement or enrollment decisions, considergive 
priority to the views of the student, and provide notice to the student of his/her appeal rights.  (42 USC 11432) 
 
In determining a student's best interest, a homeless student shall, to the extent feasible, be placed in his/her school 
of origin, unless his/herthe student's parent/guardian or the unaccompanied youth requests otherwise.  (Education 
Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11432) 
 

Note: Education Code 48852.7 and 42 USC 11432 require schools to immediately enroll homeless students as specified below. In 
its Non-Regulatory Guidance Education for Homeless Children and Youths Program, the USDOE recommends that the district take 
steps to facilitate immediate enrollment such as accepting school records directly from families, establishing school-based 
immunization clinics, and training staff on the legal requirements for immediate enrollment.  See AR 5111.1 - District Residency. 

 
Once a placement decision has been made, the principal or designee shall immediately enroll the student in the 
school of choice. The student shall be enrolled even if he/she:  (Education Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11432) 
 
1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last attended 
 
(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 
 
2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms 
 
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming) 
 
3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, proof 

of residency, and medical records, including, but not limited to, records or other proof of immunization 
historyand other required health records 

 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 

Note: P.L. 114-95 amended 42 USC 11432 to add the circumstance specified in item #4 below. 
 
4. Has missed application or enrollment deadlines during any period of homelessness 
 
The principal or designee shall immediately contact the school last attended by the student to obtain the relevant 
records. If the student needs to obtain immunizations or does not possess immunization or other medicalrequired 
health records, the principal or designee shall refer the parent/guardian to the district liaison for homeless students.  
The district liaison shall assist the parent/guardian, or the student if he/she is an unaccompanied youth, in 
obtaining the necessary immunizations, screenings, or records for the student.  (42 USC 11432) 
 
If the student is placed at a school other than his/her school of origin or the school requested by his/her 
parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the parent/guardian or 
the unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the decision along with a statement regarding the 
parent/guardian's right to appeal the placement decision. (42 USC 11432) decision along with a statement 
regarding the right to appeal the placement decision.  (42 USC 11432) 
 



6 
 
The student may continue attending his/her school of origin for the duration of the homelessness.  (Education 
Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11432) 
 
To ensure that the homeless student has the benefit of matriculating with his/her peers in accordance with the 
established feeder patterns, the following shall apply:  (Education Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11432) 
 
1. If the student is transitioning between grade levels, he/she shall be allowed to continue in the same 

attendance area. 
 
2. If the student is transitioning to a middle school or high school, and the school designated for matriculation 

is in another school district, he/she shall be allowed to continue to the school designated for matriculation 
in that district. 

 
Note: 42 USC 11432 and Education Code 48852.7 require that homeless students who become permanently housed during the school 
year be allowed to remain in the school of origin for the remainder of the school year. Education Code 48852.7 allows homeless 
students to remain in the school of origin, or matriculate to a feeder school, even if the student is no longer homeless. The district 
may revise the following list to reflect the grade levels and feeder school patterns in the district. 

 
If the student's status changes before the end of the school year so that he/she is no longer homeless, he/she shall 
be allowed to stay in the school of origin:  (Education Code 48852.7) 
 
1. Through the duration of the school year if he/she is in grades K-8  
 
2. Through graduation if he/she is in high school  
 
Resolving Enrollment Disputes 
 

Note: In the event that a dispute arises over the district's decision related to student eligibility, school selection, or enrollment, the 
district must comply with the requirements of 42 USC 11432 and the dispute resolution process established by the CDE. The CDE's 
process is described in a January 30, 2007 letter to districts, available on the CDE's web site. The CDE's letter does not specify a 
hearing process or timelines for the district-level dispute resolution process. Thus, the district may revise the following section to 
reflect district practice, provided that the process is consistent with law. 

 
If a dispute arises over student eligibility, school selection, or enrollment in a particular school, the studentmatter 
shall be immediately admittedreferred to the school in which enrollment is sought pendingdistrict liaison, who 
shall carry out the dispute resolution of the dispute.process as expeditiously as possible.  (42 USC 11432) 
 
The parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth shall be provided with a written explanation of any decisions related 
to eligibility, school selection, or enrollment and of the right of the parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth to 
appeal such decisions.  (42 USC 11432) 
 

Note: The following optional list should be modified to reflect district practice. In its Non-Regulatory Guidance Education for 
Homeless Children and Youths Program, the USDOE recommends that the written explanation contain the elements specified below. 
See the accompanying exhibits for a sample explanation and appeal form. 

 
The written explanation shall include: 
 
1. A description of the action proposed or refused by the district   
 
2. the placement decision, whichAn explanation of why the action is proposed or refused 
 



7 
 
3. A description of any other options the district considered and the reasons that any other options were 

rejected 
 
4. A description of any other factors relevant to the district's decision and information related to the eligibility 

or best interest determination including the facts, witnesses, and evidence relied upon and their sources 
 
5. Appropriate timelines to ensure any relevant deadlines are not missed 
 
6. Contact information for the district liaison and state coordinator, and a brief description of their roles 
 
The written explanation shall be complete, as brief as possible, simply stated, and provided in language that the 
parent/guardian or student can understand. The written explanation shall include: 
 
1. Note: The district liaison's contact information 
following optional paragraph is recommended 
2. A description of the district's placement decision 
 
3. Notice of the student's right to enroll in the school of choice pending resolution of the dispute, including 
the right to fully participate in all school activities 
 

4. Notice of the parent/guardian's right to appeal the decision to the county office of education and, if the 
dispute remains unresolved, to the California Department ofUSDOE's Non-Regulatory Guidance Education for 
Homeless Children and Youths Program. 

 
The district liaison shall work to resolve an enrollment dispute as expeditiously as possible after receiving 
notice of the dispute. (42 USC 11432) 
 
The district liaison may use an informal process as an alternative to formal dispute resolution procedures, provided 
that the parents/guardians or unaccompanied youth have access to the more formal process if informal resolution 
is not successful in resolving the matter. 
 
In working with a student's parents/guardians or unaccompanied youth to resolve an enrollment dispute, the 
district liaison shall: 
 
1. Inform them that they may provide written and/or oral documentation to support their position 
 
2. Inform them that they may seek the assistance of social services, advocates, and/or service providers in 

having the dispute resolved 
 
3. Provide them a simple form that they may use and turn in to the school to initiate the dispute resolution 

process 
 
4. Provide them a copy of the dispute form they submit for their records 
 
5. Provide them the outcome of the dispute for their records 
 
If a parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth disagrees with the liaison's enrollment decision, he/she may appeal 
the decision to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within five working days. 
 



8 
 

Note: In its January 30, 2007 letter to districts, the CDE describes the process for appealing a district's enrollment decision to the 
county office of education and the CDE.  Upon receipt of materials describing the dispute from the district, the county office liaison 
will determine the school selection or enrollment decision within five working days. If the dispute remains unresolved or is appealed, 
the county office liaison will forward the documentation to the state homeless coordinator who will notify the parent/guardian of the 
final school selection or enrollment decision within five working days. 

 
If the parent/guardian chooses to appeal the district's placement decision, the district liaison shall forward all 
written documentation and related paperwork to the homeless liaison at the county office of education. 
 

Note: 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95, provides that, during any dispute over a student's enrollment, the student must be 
allowed to be enrolled in the school during the period of all appeals. 42 USC 11434a defines "enrollment" as including attendance 
in classes and participation in school activities. 

 
Pending final resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals, the student shall be immediately enrolled 
in the school in which enrollment is sought and shall be allowed to attend classes and participate fully in school 
activities.  (42 USC 11432, 11434a) 
 
Transportation 
 

Note: 42 USC 11432 mandates that districts adopt policies and practices to ensure that transportation is provided to homeless 
students, at the request of their parent/guardian or of the district liaison in the case of an unaccompanied youth, to and from their 
school of origin as specified below. 
 
In its Non-Regulatory Guidance Education for Homeless Children and Youths Program, the USDOE states that the law imposes an 
affirmative obligation to transport homeless students, even if transportation is not provided to other students. The Guidance clarifies 
that, because the State of California 
receives funds under McKinney-Vento, all districts in California are subject to this requirement. 
 
Federal law does not address the authorization provided by Education Code 39807.5 for the district to charge for the cost of home-
to-school transportation. However, it is likely that most homeless students would be identified as indigent and would therefore be 
exempt from transportation costs.  See AR 3250 - Transportation Fees. 

 
The district shall provide transportation for a homeless student to and from his/her school of origin when the 
student is residing within the district and the parent/guardian, or the district liaison in the case of an 
unaccompanied youth, requests that such transportation be provided.  If the student moves outside of district 
boundaries, but continues to attend his/her school of origin within this district, the Superintendent or designee 
shall consult with the superintendent of the district in which the student is now residing to agree upon a method 
to apportion the responsibility and costs of the transportation.  (42 USC 11432)  
 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services) 
 

Note: Education Code 48852.7 requires that the district provide transportation to a formerly homeless student with an individualized 
education program that provides for transportation as a related service. Education Code 48852.7 does not supersede or exceed other 
laws governing special education services for eligible homeless students.  
 
The following paragraph may be revised if the district chooses to provide transportation to other formerly homeless students 
attending their school of origin.   

 
The district shall not be obligated to provide transportation to students who continue attending their school of 
origin after they cease to be homeless, unless the formerly homeless student has an individualized education 
program that includes transportation as a necessary related service for the student.  (Education Code 48852.7) 
 
Transfer of Coursework and Credits 



9 
 
 

Note: The following section is for use by districts maintaining high schools.  
 
When a homeless student transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full credit for any 
coursework that the student has satisfactorily completed while attending another public school, a juvenile court 
school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency and shall not require the student to retake the course.  
(Education Code 51225.2) 
 
If the homeless student did not complete the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for the coursework 
completed and shall be required to take the portion of the course that he/she did not complete at his/her previous 
school. However, the district may require the student to retake the portion of the course completed if, in 
consultation with the holder of educational rights for the student, the district finds that the student is reasonably 
able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial credit is issued to a 
homeless student in any particular course, he/she shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, 
so that he/she may continue and complete the entire course.  (Education Code 51225.2)  
 

Note: Although Education Code 51225.2 requires districts to award partial credits to homeless students who transfer from school to 
school, there is no uniform system for calculating and awarding partial credits. A recommendation for how to award partial credit is 
available in the California Child Welfare Council's Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations and should be revised 
to reflect district practice. 

 
Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended per subject. If 
the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall be equal to two regular class 
periods per subject.  Partial credits and grades earned by a student shall be included on the student's official 
transcript within two business days of the district's notification of the student's transfer, as required under 
Education Code 49069.5. 
 
In no event shall the district prevent a homeless student from taking or retaking a course to meet the eligibility 
requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of California.  (Education Code 
51225.2) 
 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
Applicability of Graduation Requirements 
 

Note:  The following section is for use by districts maintaining high schools. Also see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation 
Requirements. 
 
Education Code 60851.5 provides that the administration of the California High School Exit Examination and the requirement that 
each student completing grade 12 successfully pass the exam as a condition of receiving a diploma or a condition of graduation from 
high school are suspended for the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18 school years.   

 
To obtain a high school diploma, a homeless student shall complete all courses required by Education Code 
51225.3 and fulfill any additional graduation requirements prescribed by the Governing Board of Education. 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 
 
However, when a homeless student who has completed his/her second year of high school transfers into the district 
from another school district or transfers between high schools within the district, he/she shall be exempted from 
all district-adopted coursework and other  



10 
 
district-established graduation requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the student is reasonably able 
to complete the additional requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of his/her fourth year of 
high school. Within 30 calendar days of the homeless student's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall 
notify the student, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her, and the district liaison 
for homeless students of the availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it. If the 
Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible for the exemption once 
notified, even if the notification occurs after the student is no longer homeless.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
To determine whether a homeless student is in his/her third or fourth year of high school, the district shall use 
either the number of credits he/she has earned as of the date of the transfer or the length of his/her school 
enrollment, whichever qualifies him/her for the exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any homeless student who is granted an exemption and the person 
holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her how any requirements that are waived will affect the 
student's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution and shall provide information about 
transfer opportunities available through the California Community Colleges.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
The district shall not require or request a homeless student to transfer schools in order to qualify for an exemption 
and no request for a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption shall be made by a homeless student, the person 
holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, or the district liaison on behalf of the student.  
(Education Code 51225.1) 
 
If a homeless student is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall continue to apply after 
the student is no longer homeless or if he/she transfers to another school or school district.  (Education Code 
51225.1) 
 
If the Superintendent or designee determines that a homeless student is reasonably able to complete district 
graduation requirements within his/her fifth year of high school, he/she shall:  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
1. Inform the student and, if under 18 years of age, the person holding the right to make educational decisions 

for him/her, of the option available to the student to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the 
district's graduation requirements and how that will affect his/her ability to gain admission to a 
postsecondary educational institution 

 
2. Provide information to the homeless student about transfer opportunities available through the California 

Community Colleges 
 
3. Upon agreement with the homeless student or with the person holding the right to make educational 

decisions for him/her if he/she is under 18 years of age, permit the student to stay in school for a fifth year 
to complete the district's graduation requirements 

 
Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities 
 
 
A homeless student who enrolls in any district school shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency 
requirements for participation in interscholastic sports or other extracurricular activities.  (Education Code 48850) 
 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 



11 
 
Notification and Complaints 
 
Information regarding the educational rights of homeless students, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 and 
51225.2, shall be included in the annual uniform complaint procedures notification distributed to students, 
parents/guardians, employees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 51225.1, 
51225.2) 
 

Note: Education Code 51225.1 and 51225.2 provide that complaints of noncompliance with specified requirements related to the 
educational rights of homeless students may be filed in accordance with the uniform complaint procedures specified in 5 CCR 4600-
4687. As with other complaints covered under the uniform complaint procedures, a complainant may appeal the district's decision 
to the CDE and, if the district or CDE finds any merit in the complaint, the district must provide a remedy to the affected student.  
See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 
Any complaint that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the education of homeless students, 
as specified in Education Code 51225.1 or 51225.2, may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in 
AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
            SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation  
approved:  April 10, 2007        Sierraville, California 
revised:  April 14, 2015          Loyalton, California 
revised:  February 9, 2016 
revised:  December 13, 2016 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
Instruction BP 6173(a) 
 
EDUCATION FOR HOMELESS CHILDREN 
 

Note: The following policy reflects the intent of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 USC 11431-11435), as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), that each homeless student should have equal access to the same free, appropriate 
public education and services as other students. 42 USC 11432 mandates that districts adopt, review, and revise policies to remove 
barriers to the identification, enrollment, and retention of homeless children and youth, ensure that homeless students are not 
segregated or stigmatized on the basis of their status as homeless, and provide for professional development for appropriate staff, as 
provided in the following policy. 

 
The Governing Board desires to ensure that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access 
to education and other services necessary for them to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students.  
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
 

Note: The following paragraph is mandated pursuant to 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95.  42 USC 11432 requires that 
districts adopt policy to remove barriers to homeless students' enrollment and retention due to absences or outstanding fees or fines. 
See the accompanying administrative regulation for additional procedures designed to remove barriers to the identification and 
enrollment of homeless students. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall identify and remove any barriers to the identification and enrollment of 
homeless students and to the retention of homeless students due to absences or outstanding fees or fines.  (42 
USC 11432) 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
 
Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status as homeless 
and shall not be stigmatized in any way. 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that placement decisions for homeless students are based on the 
student's best interest as defined in law and administrative regulation. 
 
When there are at least 15 homeless students in the district or a district school, the district's local control and 
accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve student achievement and other 
outcomes of homeless students.  (Education Code 52052, 52060) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may annuallyNote: Pursuant to 42 USC 11432, districts are required to designate an 
appropriate staff person, who may also be a coordinator for other federal programs, as a district liaison for homeless students. See 
the accompanying administrative regulation for information about the designation and duties of the district liaison. 

 



2 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appropriate staff person to serve as a  
liaison for homeless children and youths. The district liaison shall fulfill the duties specified in 42 USC 11432 to 
assist in identifying and supporting homeless students to succeed in school.   
 

Note: The U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) Non-Regulatory Guidance, Education for Homeless Children and Youths 
Program, emphasizes that districts should include the identification of homeless students and their unique educational needs in 
district needs assessments and school improvement plans. The following optional paragraph reflects strategies included in the 
Guidance for identifying homeless students and may be revised to reflect district practice. Also see the California Department of 
Education's (CDE) web site for a sample student residency questionnaire and "You Can Enroll in School" poster. 

 
In order to identify district students who are homeless, the Superintendent or designee may give a housing 
questionnaire to all parents/guardians during school registration, make referral forms readily available, include 
the district liaison's contact information on the district and school web sites, provide materials in a language easily 
understood by families and students, provide school staff with professional development on the definition and 
signs of homelessness, and contact appropriate local agencies to coordinate referrals for homeless children and 
youth and unaccompanied youth. 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

Note: Although students' addresses generally may be designated as "directory information" that is not harmful if disclosed,  P.L. 
114-95 amended 42 USC 11432 to provide that information about a homeless student's living situation must instead be provided the 
protections afforded to other student records under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. For further information about 
the disclosure of homeless students' records, see the USDOE's Non-Regulatory Guidance, Education for Homeless Children and 
Youths Program.  

 
Information about a homeless student's living situation shall be considered part of a student's educational record, 
subject to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and shall not be deemed to be directory information as 
defined in 20 USC 1232g.  (42 USC 11432) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 42 USC 11432, placement determinations for homeless students must be made according to the student's "best 
interest," as defined in the accompanying administrative regulation.  

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that placement decisions for homeless students are based on the 
student's best interest as defined in law and administrative regulation. 
 
Each homeless student shall be provided services that are comparable to services offered to other students in the 
school, including, but not limited to, transportation, educational  
programs for which the student meets the eligibility criteria (such as federal Title I services or similar state or 
local programs, programs for students with disabilities, and educational programs for English learners), career 
and technical education programs, programs for gifted and talented students, and school nutrition programs.  (42 
USC 11432) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 



3 
 
(cf. 6178 - Career and Technical Education) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is mandated by 42 USC 11432. Although this law prohibits the segregation of homeless students 
into a separate school or program, separate schools that were in operation before 2001 may continue to operate under specified 
conditions. Districts that maintain such a school may revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice. 

 
Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status as homeless 
and shall not be stigmatized in any way.  However, the Superintendent or designee may separate homeless 
students on school grounds as necessary for short periods of time for health and safety emergencies or to provide 
temporary, special, and supplementary services to meet the unique needs of homeless students.  (42 USC 11432, 
11433) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 

Note: Pursuant to 42 USC 11432, districts receiving assistance through the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act are required 
to coordinate services as provided below. Other districts may delete or revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.  

 
The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with other agencies and entities to ensure that homeless children 
and youth are promptly identified, ensure that homeless students have access to and are in reasonable proximity 
to available education and related support services, and raise the awareness of school personnel and service 
providers of the effects of short-term stays in a shelter and other challenges associated with homelessness. Toward 
these ends, the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local social services agencies, other agencies or 
entities providing services to homeless children and youth, and, if applicable, transitional housing facilities. In 
addition, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate transportation, transfer of school records, and other 
interdistrict activities with other 
local educational agencies. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate, within the district and 
with other involved local educational agencies, services for homeless students and services for students with 
disabilities.  (42 USC 11432) 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
 

Note: 42 USC 11432, as amended by P.L. 114-95, mandates that districts adopt policies and practices to ensure participation by 
district liaisons and other appropriate staff in professional development and other technical assistance activities, as determined 
appropriate by the federal Office of the Coordinator. 
 
Education Code 48852.5, as amended by SB 1068 (Ch. 538, Statutes of 2016), requires the CDE to provide specified informational 
and training materials to district liaisons, including informational materials on the educational rights of homeless children and youth 
and resources available to assist homeless children and youth. It also requires the CDE to adopt policies and practices to ensure that 
liaisons participate in professional development and technical assistance programs. 

 
District liaisons and other appropriate staff shall participate in professional development and other technical 
assistance activities to assist them in identifying and meeting the needs of homeless students and to provide 
training on the definitions of terms related to homelessness.  (42 USC 11432)  
 

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education 
Code 52064.5, the State Board of Education has adopted evaluation rubrics for use by districts in evaluating their strengths, 
weaknesses, and areas that require improvement. 
 
In addition, pursuant to 20 USC 6311, as amended by P.L. 114-95, annual district report cards for districts receiving Title I funds 
are required to include disaggregated student achievement data and graduation rates of homeless students. 

 
At least annually, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on outcomes for homeless students, 
which may include, but are not limited to, school attendance, student achievement test results, promotion and 



4 
 
retention rates by grade level, graduation rates, suspension/expulsion rates, and other outcomes related to any 
goals and specific actions identified in the LCAP. Based on the evaluation data, the district shall revise its 
strategies as needed to better support the education of homeless students. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 
2558.2  Use of revenue limits to determine average daily attendance of homeless children 
39807.5 Payment of transportation costs by parents 
48850  Educational rights; participation in extracurricular activities of homeless and foster youth 
48852.5  Notice of educational rights of homeless students 
48852.7 Enrollment of homeless students 
48915.5  Recommended expulsion, homeless student with disabilities 
48918.1  Notice of recommended expulsion 
51225.1-51225.3  Graduation requirements 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1087vv  Free Application for Federal Student Aid; definitions 
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
6311  Title I state plan; state and local educational agency report cards 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
12705 Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act; state and local strategies 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA CHILD WELFARE COUNCIL 
Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
Homeless Education Dispute Resolution Process, January 30, 2007 
NATIONAL CENTER FOR HOMELESS EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Homeless Liaison Toolkit, 2013 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE 
Dear Colleague Letter, July 27, 2016 
Education for Homeless Children and YouthYouths Program, Non-Regulatory Guidance, July 20042016 
WEB SITES 
California Child Welfare Council:  http://www.chhs.ca.gov/Pages/CAChildWelfareCouncil.aspx  
California Department of Education, Homeless Children and Youth Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/hs/cy 
National Center for Homeless Education at SERVE:  http://www.serve.org/nche 
National Law Center on Homelessness and Poverty:  http://www.nlchp.org 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov/programs/homeless/index.html 

 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopted:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  February 9, 2016 Loyalton, California 
revised:  December 13, 2016 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Exhibit 
 
Instruction E(1) 6173(a) 
 
EDUCATION FOR HOMELESS CHILDREN 
 

DISTRICT EXPLANATION OF DECISION 
RELATED TO ELIGIBILITY, SCHOOL SELECTION, OR ENROLLMENT DECISION 

 
Note:  The following form should be revised to reflect district practice. In its Non-Regulatory Guidance 
Education for Homeless Children and Youths Program, the U.S. Department of Education recommends that the 
written statement of any decision regarding a homeless student's eligibility, school selection, or enrollment include 
the elements specified below. See the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
Instructions: The following form is to be used when the district has denied aprovides notice and 
explanation to a student's parent/guardian's enrollment requestguardian or an unaccompanied 
youth regarding the district's decision related to student eligibility, school selection, or enrollment. 
 
Date:______________  
Name of person completing form:____________________________ 
Title:__________________________   
Phone number:_______________________________ 
 
In accordance with the federal lawMcKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 USC 
1143211431-11435), this notification is being provided to either: 
Name of parent/(s)/guardian(s): _______________________________________________ 
Name of unaccompanied student: _____________________________________________ 
School requested:__________________________________________________________ 
District's placement decision (name of school):___________________________________ 
 
After reviewing your request to enroll your child inAction(s) proposed/refused by the district 
related to eligibility, school listed above, yourselection, or enrollment request has been denied.  
This:  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The district's determination regarding eligibility, school selection, or enrollment was based upon 
the following evidence and for the following reasons: 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 



2 
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Other options that the district considered, if any, included the following options which were 
rejected for the following reasons:  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Factors relevant to the district's decision and information related to the eligibility or best interest 
determination including the facts, witnesses, and evidence relied upon and their sources, if any:  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
You have the right to appeal this decision to the district Superintendent.  To do so, contact the 
district's homeless liaison listed below within the next five working days to request a Dispute 
Form. You may provide written or verbal documentation to support your position, and may also 
seek the assistance of social services, advocates, and/or service providers in the dispute process. 
The Superintendent or designee will review all the evidence and will notify you of his/her decision 
within 30 calendar days.  
 
If you are not satisfied with the Superintendent's decision, you may appeal to the Sierra County 
Board Office of Education.  If you are not satisfied with the county board’s decision, you may then 
appeal to the California Department of Education.  The district's homeless liaison can assist you 
with this appeal. 
 
CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 
District Liaison: The district liaison is one of the primary contacts between homeless families and 
school or district staff. He/she is responsible for coordinating services to ensure that homeless 
students enroll in school and have the opportunity to succeed academically, and mediates 
enrollment disputes as needed. 
 
Name of district's homeless liaison:____Superintendent of Schools______________ 
Address:_P. O. Box 955, Loyalton, CA 96118 
                109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA 96118___________________________ 
Phone number: 530 993-1660______________________ 
 
County Liaison: If you appeal the district's decision to the county office of education, the 
district liaison shall forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the County Board 
of Education who will review the materials and determine the eligibility, school selection, or 



3 
 

enrollment decision within five working days of receiving the materials. He/she will notify you of 
the decision. 
 
Sierra County Board of Education 
109 Beckwith Road 
P. O. Box 109 
Loyalton CA 96118 
 
State Coordinator: If you appeal the county board's decision to the California Department of 
Education, the county homeless liaison shall forward all written documentation and related 
paperwork to the State Homeless Coordinator.  The state coordinator will review the district, 
county board, and parent/guardian information and will notify you of the decision within ten 
working days of receiving the materials. 
 
Name of state homeless coordinator: __________________________________________ 
Ms. Leanne Wheeler 
School Turnaround Office  
Improvement and Accountability Division 
California Department of Education 
1430 N Street, 6th Floor, Suite 6208 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Phone: (916) 319-0383 
Fax: (916) 319-0123 
Email:  lwheeler@cde.ca.gov 

 
RIGHTS: 
 
Pending the final resolution of this dispute, your childincluding the period of all appeals, the 
student has the right to immediately enroll in the school you requested and to participate fully in 
school activities at that school. 
 
* You may provide written or verbal documentation to support your position.  You may use the 
district's dispute resolution form. A copy of the dispute resolution form can be obtained from the 
district's liaison for homeless students. 
 
* You may seek the assistance of advocates or attorneys to help you with this appeal. 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Approved:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 
Revised:     December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
  

mailto:lwheeler@cde.ca.gov


4 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Exhibit   
Instruction E(2) 6173 
 
EDUCATION FOR HOMELESS CHILDREN 
 

DISPUTE FORM 
 
Instructions:  This form is to be completed by a parent/guardian or student when a dispute 
regarding enrollment has arisen.  As an alternative to completing this form, the information on this 
form may be shared verbally with the district's liaison for homeless students. 
 
Date submitted:________________________ 
Student's name:______________________________________________________________ 
Name of person completing form:_______________________________________________ 
Student's name:______________________________________________________________ 
Relation to student:___________________________________________________________ 
I may be contacted at the following: 
 
Address:___________________________________________________________________ 
Phone number:______________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of school requested:_____________________________________________________ 
 
I wish to appeal the eligibility, school selection, or enrollment decision made by: 
?□ District liaison   ? □ District Superintendent   ?   □ County office of education  
 
Reason for the appeal:  You may include an explanation to support your appeal in this space or 
provide your explanation verbally. 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
I have been provided with: 
  ? □ A written explanation of the district's decision 

  ? □ Contact information for the district's homeless liaison 

  ? □ Contact information for the county office of education's homeless liaison 
 
 
Exhibit   SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Approved:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 
Revised:     December 13, 2016 Loyalton, California 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Bylaw 

Meetings And Notice 
 

BB 9320  

Board Bylaws 
 

 

Meetings of the Board of Education are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business.  In 

accordance with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall 

conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law.  To encourage community 

involvement in the schools, Board meetings shall provide opportunities for questions and comments by 

members of the public.  All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, 

policies, and administrative regulations. 

 

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 

 

A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and place to hear, 

discuss, or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or district.  

(Government Code 54952.2) 

 

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, 

directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 

matter jurisdiction of the Board.  However, an employee or district official may engage in separate 

conversations with Board members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item 

within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not 

communicate the comments or position of any Board members to other Board members.  (Government Code 

54952.2) 

 

(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 

 

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the Superintendent or 

designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in 

accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  (Government Code 54953.2, 54954.1) 

 

Regular Meetings 

 

The Sierra County Board of Education shall hold one regular meeting each month per Education Code 1011. 

 

The Sierra County Board of Education regular meetings shall be held at 6 pm on the second Tuesday of every 

month with the exception of the month of June whereas the meetings may be held on the third Wednesday. 

 

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District regular meetings shall be held immediately following the Sierra 

County Office of Education regular meeting. 

 

The president of either board or a majority of the board members may request to reschedule either regular 

meeting date and/or time if foreseen circumstances reveal rescheduling to be a benefit to board business, the 



county office or school district. 

 

Meetings shall be held at Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville, CA, and the Sierra County 

Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA, in alternate months. Closed Session meetings 

may be held any time prior to or thereafter any regular or special meeting as deemed necessary by the board 

president. . 

 

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely 

accessible to members of the public and on the district's Internet web site.  (Government Code 54954.2) 

 

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

 

Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less 

than 72 hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public 

inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose.  (Government Code 54957.5) 

 

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 

 

Special Meetings 

 

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board 

members.  However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other 

compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in 

Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956) 

 

(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 

 

Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members 

and the local media who have requested such notice in writing.  The notice also shall be posted on the district's 

Internet web site.  The notice shall be received at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting.  The notice 

shall also be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public.  The notice 

shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed.  No other 

business shall be considered at this meeting.  (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 

 

Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing 

a written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time 

it convenes.  (Government Code 54956) 

 

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the 

Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's 

consideration. (Government Code 54954.3) 

 

Emergency Meetings 

 

In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened 

disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour 

notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.  The 

Board shall comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. 

(Government Code 54956.5) 

 

An emergency situation means either of the following:  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 



1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that 

severely impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board 

 

(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage) 

 

2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist activity, or 

threatened terrorist act that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide 

one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as 

determined by a majority of the members of the Board 

 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

 

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency 

meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of 

special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification must 

be exhausted.  If telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as 

soon after the meeting as possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall 

describe the purpose of the meeting and any action taken by the Board.  In the case of a dire emergency, the 

Board president or designee shall give such notice at or near the time he/she notifies the other members of the 

Board about the meeting.  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a 

copy of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public 

place as soon after the meeting as possible.  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 

Adjourned/Continued Meetings 

 

A majority vote by the Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and place that 

shall be specified in the order of adjournment.  Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn such a meeting. 

If no Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a later time 

and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings.  (Government Code 54955) 

 

Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of adjournment/continuance shall 

be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held.  (Government Code 

54955) 

 

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 

 

The Board may occasionally convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to 

receive information from staff or feedback from members of the public. 

 

The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships. 

 

(cf. 2000 - Concepts and Roles) 

(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 

(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 

 

Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the Board is attending a study session, 

retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting.  All such meetings shall comply with the Brown Act and shall be 

held in open session and within district boundaries.  Action items shall not be included on the agenda for these 



meetings. 

 

Other Gatherings 

 

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act 

provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves other 

than as part of the scheduled program:  (Government Code 54952.2) 

 

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of 

general interest to the public or to school board members 

 

2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to address a 

topic of local community concern 

 

3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district 

 

4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency 

 

5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion 

 

6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board members 

who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers 

 

(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 

 

Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to the 

Brown Act.  (Government Code 54952.2) 

 

Location of Meetings 

 

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry or 

any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135, including, but not limited to, religion, sex, or sexual 

orientation.  In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility which is inaccessible to individuals with 

disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted.  

(Government Code 54961) 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

 

Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following:  (Government Code 

54954) 

 

1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to 

which the district is a party 

 

2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that 

the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property 

 

3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held 

within one of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law 

 

4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its boundaries or if its 

principal office is located outside the district 



 

5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, 

solely to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials 

have jurisdiction 

 

6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting 

agenda is limited to items directly related to that facility 

 

7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so 

would reduce legal fees or costs 

 

8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques 

 

9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for 

Superintendent of the district 

 

10. Interview a potential employee from another district 

 

Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #1-10 above, shall still be subject to 

the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of the Board attends 

the meeting. 

 

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe, meetings shall be held 

for the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so inform 

all news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid available means of 

communication.  (Government Code 54954) 

 

Teleconferencing 

 

A teleconference is a meeting of the Board linking various locations by electronic means through audio and/or 

video for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency in connection with any meeting or 

proceeding authorized by law. 

 

All of the Board shall participate from the primary board meeting location.  Inability to attend the meeting at 

the primary location is considered an absence. 

 

Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they 

are posted elsewhere.  Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the public.  (Government Code 

54953) 

 

All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public.  All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted 

in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the 

Board, including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location.  

(Government Code 54953) 

 

All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are 

teleconferenced.  The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the meeting at each 

teleconference location. 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35140  Time and place of meetings 



35143  Annual organizational meeting, date, and notice 

35144  Special meeting 

35145  Public meetings 

35145.5  Agenda; public participation; regulations 

35146  Closed sessions 

35147  Open meeting law exceptions and applications 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3511.1  Local agency executives 

11135  State programs and activities, discrimination 

54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 

54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 

54954  Time and place of regular meetings 

54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions 

54956  Special meetings; call; notice 

54956.5  Emergency meetings 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.160  Effective communications 

36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 

COURT DECISIONS 

Wolfe v. City of Fremont, (2006) 144 Cal.App. 544 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001) 

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996) 

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009 

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS 

The ABCs of Open Government Laws 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.csba.org/Services/Services/GovernanceTechnology/AgendaOnline.aspx 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.ag.ca.gov 

Institute for Local Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 

League of California Cities:  http://www.cacities.org 

 

 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy             SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

adopted:  November 13, 2007         Sierraville, California 

revised:  January 13, 2009 

revised:  December 13, 2011 

revised:  February 14, 2012 

revised:  October 8, 2013          Loyalton, California 

revised:  August 11, 2015 

revised:  First Reading, December 13, 2016 

http://www.csba.org/


Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Exhibit 

 

Board Bylaws E(1) 9323.2(a) 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD 

 

 

ACTIONS REQUIRING A SUPER MAJORITY VOTE 

 

Note:  The following exhibit lists some of the Governing Board actions that require more than a simple majority 

vote.  Other such actions may exist and may be identified in the future. 

 

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board: 

 

1. Resolution declaring intention to sell or lease real property  (Education Code 17466) 

 
(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property) 

 

2. Resolution declaring intent of Governing Board of Education to convey or dedicate 

property to the state or any political subdivision for the purposes specified in Education 

Code 17556 (Education Code 17557) 

 

3. Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding officer, 

secretary, or member, to execute a deed of dedication or conveyance of property to the 

state or a political subdivision  (Education Code 17559) 

 

4. Lease, for up to three months, of school property which has a residence on it and which 

cannot be developed for district purposes because funds are unavailable  (Education Code 

17481) 

 

Note:  Item #5 below is different from temporary borrowing pursuant to Government Code 53850-53858 which 

requires only a majority vote of the Board. 

 

5. Request for temporary borrowing pursuant to Government Code 53820-53833, to pay 

district obligations incurred before the receipt of district income for the fiscal year 

sufficient to meet the payment(s)  (Government Code 53821) 

 

6. Upon complying with Government Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 21151.2, 

action to render city or county zoning ordinances inapplicable to a proposed use of the 

property by the district  (Government Code 53094) 

 
(cf. 7131 - Relations with Local Agencies) 

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 

 



77. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8 and seeks to establish a community 

day school for any of grades K-8  (Education Code 48660) 

 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

8. When the district has an average daily attendance (ADA) of 2,500 or less and seeks to 

situate a community day school on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory 

alternative facilities are not available for a community day school  (Education Code 48661) 

 

89. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8 and seeks to situate a community 

day school on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities are 

not available for a community day school  (Education Code 48661) 

 

910. When the district desires to operate a community day school to serve any of grades K-6 

(and no higher grades) on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative 

facilities are not available for a community day school  (Education Code 48661) 

 

11 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

10. Resolution of intent to issue general obligation bonds with the approval of 55 percent of 

the voters of the district  (Education Code 15266) 

 
(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds) 

 

1112. Resolution of intent to issue bonds within a school facilities improvement district with the 

approval of 55 percent of the voters of the school facilities improvement district (Education 

Code 15266) 

 
(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts) 

 

1213. Resolution to place a parcel tax on the ballot  (Government Code 53724) 

 

13Note:  Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240 requires that, prior to commencing an eminent domain action, the 

Board adopt a resolution of necessity approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board unless a greater vote is required 

by statute, charter, or ordinance. In addition, if the Board desires to use the property for a different purpose than 

stated in the resolution of necessity, then pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 1245.245, the Board must adopt, by 

two-thirds vote, another resolution authorizing the different use unless a greater vote is required by statute, charter, 

or ordinance. 

 

14. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board 

subsequently desires to use the property for a different use than stated in the resolution of 

necessity, a subsequent resolution so authorizing the different use  (Code of Civil 

Procedure 1245.240, 1245.245) 

 

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting: 

 



1. Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action  

came to the district's attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-thirds of the 

Board members are present at the meeting, a unanimous vote of all members present is 

required.  (Government Code 54954.2) 

 

2. Determination that a closed session is necessary during an emergency meeting.  If less than 

two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all members present is 

required.  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

 

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board: 

 

1. Expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or personnel to 

meet a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, or 

sabotage, or to provide for adequate national or local defense (Government Code 53790-

53792) 

 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 

 

2. Resolution for district borrowing based on issuance of notes, tax anticipation warrants, or 

other evidences of indebtedness, in an amount up to 50 percent of the district's estimated 

income and revenue for the fiscal year or the portion not yet collected at the time of the 

borrowing  (Government Code 53822, 53824) 

 

3. Resolution for district borrowing, between July 15 and August 30 of any fiscal year, of up 

to 25 percent of the estimated income and revenue to be received by the district during that 

fiscal year from apportionments based on ADA for the preceding school year  (Government 

Code 53823-53824) 

 

4. Declaration of an emergency in order to authorize the district to include a particular brand 

name or product in a bid specification  (Public Contract Code 3400) 

 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 

 

5. Resolution to award a contract for a public works project at $187,500 or less to the lowest 

responsible bidder, when the district is using the informal process authorized under the 

Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act for projects of $175,000 or less, all bids 

received are in excess of $175,000, and the Board determines that the district's cost estimate 

was reasonable  (Public Contract Code 22034) 

 

Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board: 

 

1. Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a community lease for extraction of 

gas  (Education Code 17510-17511) 

 



2. Waiver of the competitive bid process pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 when the 

Board determines that an emergency exists and upon approval of the County 

Superintendent of Schools  (Public Contract Code 20113) 

 

Action Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting: 

 

1. Private sale of surplus property without advertisement in order to establish that such 

property is not worth more than $2,500.  Disposal of surplus property in the local dump or 

donation to a charitable organization requires the unanimous vote of the Board members 

present to establish that the value of such property would not defray the cost of arranging 

its sale.  (Education Code 17546) 

 
(cf. 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies) 

 

 

 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Exhibit SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

version:   February 12, 2013 Sierraville, California 

revision:  December 9, 2014       Loyalton, California 

minor revision:  June 14, 2016 
 

Copyright 2016 by  
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 
 

 


	1_12_13_2016_SCOE_AGENDA
	2_SCOE BusMgrJobDesc_Nov 2016
	3_Save the Date_FosterParentTraining
	4_SCOE Nov2016 ObSum Balances
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	1
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	16
	
	
	
	5
	7000









	5_11_08_2016_SCOE Minutes
	6_SCOE Nov2016 Checks
	Board Report
	1
	00014498
	00014499
	00014500
	00014501
	00014502
	00014503
	00014504
	00014505
	00014506
	00014507
	00014508
	00014509
	00014510
	00014511
	00014512
	00014513
	00014514
	00014515
	00014516
	00014517
	00014518
	00014519
	00014520
	00014521
	00014522
	00014523

	2
	01
	76



	7_16-002_Res_CofInt_SCOE_ApprovedbyBOS
	8_SCOE FINAL 2016-2017 First Interim Narrative
	9_First Interim_ 16-17_SCOE
	10rptFinalEEPApp_SmartWatt_County
	11_BB9320 Meetings
	12_Policies for 12-2016
	3541.2 Trans_Students with Dis_RED
	4217.11 Preretire PT Employ-Red
	5125.3 AR ChallengingStudentRecords_RED
	6143 AR Coursesof Study_RED
	6173 AR_EdHomeless_RED
	6173 BP_Homeless_RED
	6173 E_EdHomeless_RED
	9320BB Meetings
	9323.2 E Actions by the Board.RED


